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Report of the Board
The Board presents its report and the audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
Principal Activities
Wakefield and District Housing Limited (WDH) is a charitable Community Benefit
Society (CBS) registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
Act 2014 and is an exempt charity. The Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2020 have been prepared as a CBS. WDH is a not for profit registered
provider administered by a remunerated Board.
Other members of the Group are:
•
•

•

WDH Solutions Limited (WDHS). A wholly owned subsidiary company
incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 and limited by guarantee.
Northern Shared Services Limited (NSS). A subsidiary company with a 51%
holding incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company that is
limited by shares.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP. A joint venture entity incorporated under the
Companies Act 2006 as a Limited Liability Partnership with a 50% interest.

The Group’s and Association’s principal activities are the improvement, management
and provision of affordable housing; the delivery of social added value; and
investment in new build development.
Business Review
Details of the Group's performance for the year, future plans and response to
COVID-19 are set out in the Strategic Report that follows.
Board Members and Directors
The Board Members and the Directors of WDH who held office during the year, and
since the year end, are set out on page one. At the year end, WDH had seven
Board members. All Board members are ordinary members, who are drawn from a
wide background, bringing together professional, commercial and local skills and
experience. All Board members have been entitled to receive payments for their
services, details of this are shown in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.
The Directors of the Association are the Chief Executive, Executive Directors of
Housing, Resources, Technical Services and Investment with Directors of Finance
and Organisational Development. The Directors hold no interest in the Group and
act within the authority delegated by the Board. The Group’s insurance policies
indemnify Board Members and Officers of the business against liability when acting
on behalf of WDH.
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Report of the Board
Service Contracts
The Chief Executive and other Directors are employed on similar terms to other
employees. However, their notice periods are three months.
Pensions
The Directors are members of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund, a defined benefit,
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) based on career average earnings.
They participate in the scheme on the same terms as all other eligible employees.
WDH contributes to the scheme on behalf of its employees who are members.
Other Benefits
The Directors are entitled to other benefits such as the provision of a car allowance
and health care, although not all benefits are taken. Details of their remuneration
packages are included in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.
Employees
The strength of the Group lies in the quality of all its employees. In particular, the
ability to meet objectives of the Group and Association and commitments to tenants
in an efficient and effective manner is reliant on their valuable contribution.
The Group shares information about its strategic objectives, performance progress
and operational activities through regular meetings involving the Board, senior
management team, employees and employee representatives.
The Group also recognises that complying with the Health and Safety at Work Act
1974, and the regulations made under it, is at the core of its business ethic. The
Group acknowledges that compliance is a legal duty, not a matter of choice.
The Group has a policy to recruit the right person for each position, taking into
consideration the protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 which
includes people with disabilities. The Group’s Diversity and Inclusion Policy ensures
that the recruitment and selection process establish a workforce that reflects, as
much as possible, the local communities in which the Group operates.
Donations
The Group made donations of £16k (2019: £26k) through Neighbourhood Panels in
support of community initiatives and activities, 35 Community Grants were made for
local schemes, none of which exceeded £1,500.
The Group made no political donations in the year (2019: £nil).
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Report of the Board
Internal Controls Assurance
The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the
comprehensive system of internal control across the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility for the system of
internal control, but it has delegated authority to the Audit and Risk Committee to
regularly review the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
The system of internal control adopted is designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk of the failure to achieve objectives, and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss, providing reasonable but not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The process for identifying, evaluating, and managing
significant risks is ongoing and has been in place throughout the period commencing
1 April 2019, up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements.
Key elements of the control framework include:
•

•

•

•

•

•
•

•

Board approved Standing Orders and Terms of Reference, and delegated
authorities for the Audit and Risk, Investment and Funding, Operational, and
Compliance and Assurance Committees.
A formal Risk Management Policy, with a Board approved Risk Appetite
Statement, and clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification,
evaluation and control of significant risks.
Detailed and challenging stress testing and sensitivity analysis under a rigorous
suite of increasing onerous scenarios are used to test the business plan annually,
which included mitigating actions. The business plan is also benchmarked by
external consultants.
The Association’s risks are challenged at each Board and Audit and Risk
Committee meeting, with the latter giving detailed consideration to the sources of
risk assurance for the key risks as part of ‘deep dive’ exercises undertaken at
every meeting.
Board approved Code of Conduct that applies to all employees, Board,
Committee and Panel members. The Code is based on good practice, the
National Housing Federation’s Excellence in Standards of Conduct Code, and the
findings of the Nolan Committee on ‘Standards in Public Life’.
Formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies, supported by a
formal induction and a competence based appraisal framework.
Weekly Corporate Management Board (CMB) meetings for strategic oversight of
the decision making process, along with monthly Performance, Scrutiny and
Challenge (PSC) meetings to facilitate peer review and to challenge financial and
operational performance, together with emerging risks and performance against
early warning indicators which are aligned to the Board approved Risk Appetite.
The early warning indicators are also reported to Audit and Risk Committee and
Board.
Robust strategic and business planning processes and detailed budgeting,
forecasting, variance analysis and the monitoring of key performance measures,
reported to senior management monthly (PSC) & (CMB) and to the Board and
Funders quarterly.
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Report of the Board
Internal Controls Assurance Continued
• Formal authorisation and appraisal procedures are in place for all significant new
initiatives and commitments.
• Rigorous treasury management that is subject to external review twice each year,
prior to being approved by the Board.
• Loan covenants monitored monthly and reported to monthly PSC meetings and
submitted to Funders quarterly.
• Policies govern effectively the prevention of fraud and corruption, a
whistleblowing code of practice, and compliance with the introduction of the
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).
The internal audit function is delivered by outsourced internal auditors, ensuring
greater independence, objectivity, and source of assurance, in accordance with the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Audit issued by the
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). Fraud, Corruption and Bribery
awareness meetings are held with Directors and senior managers annually to
identify and evaluate potential risks and associated mitigation controls. Fraud
materialisations are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and recorded in a
Fraud Register and to the Regulator on an annual basis. Assurance mapping is
performed against the key risks. The controls to mitigate risks are considered, as
are sources of assurance of the effectiveness of the controls.
The Audit and Risk Committee has received the Chief Executive’s Annual Review of
the Effectiveness of Internal Control and the Annual Report of the Internal Auditors.
Of the 11 audits completed, this resulted in the identification of five medium and 22
low risk findings, to improve weaknesses in the design of controls and / or operating
effectiveness. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) also identified nine advisory
suggestions. The Internal Auditors found no significant control failures and that
controls appeared to be operating effectively in the areas reviewed.
A number of areas were identified where controls could be further strengthened, with
all recommendations being implemented.
WDH’s internal auditors completed an advisory review of WDH’s response to
COVID-19. At an overall level, those interviewed considered that WDH’s
pre-existing processes had generally supported the organisation to be able to
respond to the unprecedented impact of COVID-19, and there was a consistent view
that there is scope to enhance crisis management planning and business continuity
planning for the future.
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities
WDH has an embedded Risk Management Framework, with a Board defined Risk
Appetite Statement aligned to the Business Strategy. WDH conducts its business in
a prudent manner which safeguards its assets through the effective management of
risk and takes all necessary steps to ensure its social housing assets are protected
and not subjected to undue risk.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
The risk register is owned by the Group Board and is a standing item at every Board
meeting. It is routinely scrutinised by Executive Directors, Directors and by the Audit
and Risk Committee on behalf of the Board.
In addition to the key risks highlighted in the next section, WDH has outlined its
approach to COVID-19, Brexit and management of high rise buildings.
Key risk and main
drivers

How the Board gets assurance

Health and safety and property compliance
Key drivers include A dedicated Compliance Team oversees and reports on
fire safety within
property compliance to the Compliance and Assurance
multi-storey blocks
Committee, with performance information reported to Board.
and independent
Key property compliance controls include:
living schemes; gas
• Annual gas servicing and electrical testing programmes.
and electrical
compliance;
• Robust fire risk assessment process.
legionella and
asbestos safety; the • Processes for the management of asbestos and water safety
risks.
safety of lifts.
• Inspection and servicing of passenger lifts.

The safety and
wellbeing of
employees,
particularly
tradespeople and
lone workers.

In response to the pandemic it was necessary to introduce
revised operating procedures across the housing and repairs
services to ensure the ongoing safety of tenants during the
COVID-19 crisis where it was not safe to enter people’s homes.
The central Health and Safety Team oversees and reports on
health and safety to the Health and Safety Committee and
Compliance and Assurance Committee, with performance
information also reported to Board.
Health and safety systems are subject to scrutiny and audit from
external bodies including auditing body for OHSAS 18001,
CHAS and the Health and Safety Executive.
The Health and Safety Team have been core to the ongoing
management of the risks posed by COVID-19 to tenants and
employees, and the development of the Corporate COVID-19
Risk Assessment.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Key risk and main
drivers

How the Board gets assurance

Stock condition and asset management
Ensuring the asset
The Compliance and Assurance Committee oversee the
portfolio delivers
approval and delivery of the asset management plan and
value for money
independent Stock Condition Survey. Savills completed on
and meets the
behalf of WDH a full Stock Condition Survey in 2020. The
required standards
results of this have been reflected in WDH’s current Business
for stock condition
Plan.
and property
The Capital Programme is aligned to the above and is approved
compliance, the
by the Board each year. The Board receive performance
highest standards
information and scheme forecasts at each meeting.
of fire safety within
The high rise upgrade programme is underway to ensure the
multi-storey
highest standards of fire safety within high rise accommodation.
accommodation.
Governance, legal and regulatory compliance
Effectiveness of
The Audit and Risk Committee oversee appointment of the
internal control
internal and external auditors, who provide external assurance
framework coupled on the effectiveness of WDH’s internal control framework.
with framework for
Robust governance, internal control and risk management
governance and
arrangements are in place, and reviewed annually by internal
control.
audit.
Ensuring
compliance against Board oversight of detailed scenario and stress testing
performed on the Business Plan.
regulatory
standards and
Rolling programme of self-assessments against all Regulatory
chosen code of
Standards, with outcomes reported to Governance and
governance.
Regulation Panel and Audit and Risk Committee.
The Board have been involved in the key stages of WDH’s
management of the COVID-19 crisis to ensure the response
remains within the Board Risk Appetite.
Business Plan and financial viability
Key drivers include Board approval of the annual Business Strategy, and Business
the external
Planning Framework, which incorporates scenario planning and
financial and
stress testing.
political
Covenants monitored as part of Management Accounts and
environment, and
forecast forward to the year end. Reported to monthly
future welfare
Performance, Scrutiny and Challenge (PSC), and to Board and
reforms impacting
Funders every quarter.
the tenants and
External advice on treasury management is provided to the
business;
Board and the Treasury Management Strategy is reviewed and
refinancing risks;
updated to Board twice a year.
liquidity issues and
covenant
compliance.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Key risk and main
drivers

How the Board gets assurance

Impact of Welfare Reform and other risks to income
Key drivers include The operational management of welfare reform and its impact
increases in rent
on tenancies and income is delivered by the Housing
arrears for reasons Directorate, and reported to Operational Committee, with
such as welfare
performance also reported to the Board. The Audit and Risk
reform and impact
Committee also receive a welfare reform update at each
of COVID-19 or no- meeting.
deal Brexit on
Key controls include an ongoing co-ordinated response to the
economy and
rollout of Universal Credit, together with investment in a range of
people’s incomes;
pre and post tenancy services to support sustainable tenancies.
increases in void
Key performance indicators, emerging trends and the tenant
loss or bad debt;
experience are monitored.
future government
At present, COVID-19 is not impacting income and the
policy on welfare
sustainability of tenancies. Its impact is being mitigated through
reform and sector
the measures outlined above.
rent formula.
Delivery of new homes
Ensuring an
Oversight of development programme is provided by the Quality
appropriate pipeline and Assurance Group and Investment and Funding Committee,
of properties to
with performance and scheme forecasts being reported to each
meet the ambitions Board.
of the Development
All new development proposals require completion of a financial
Programme;
appraisal which must meet Board approved parameters to
housing market
ensure viability of schemes.
exposure.
Refinancing of the loan portfolio was completed to create
additional long term development capacity.
External advice obtained on development pipelines, commercial
opportunities, and growth opportunities within our area of
operations.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Key risk and main
drivers

How the Board gets assurance

Data integrity and technological risks
Effective resilience
The delivery of IT change is managed through Project Boards,
and data security;
and updates provided to the Board.
ensuring systems
Key controls include IT resilience, business continuity and
keep pace with the
disaster recovery frameworks. Cyber security threats are
requirements of the
analysed, and countermeasures and antivirus software are kept
Association and its
up to date.
customers;
There is a short term risk in relation to the resilience of the
ensuring data
legacy IT systems for which an upgrade programme is
quality.
underway.
This exercise sits alongside a wider piece of work to embed
improvements in data security across the organisation, and work
towards a formal accreditation.
As the Association has mobilised to a home working delivery
basis to respond to COVID-19 IT security and resilience has
been constantly reviewed to ensure service continuity and
security has been maintained.
Appropriately skilled workforce with the right competencies
Ensuring effective
Effective recruitment and selection arrangements ensure a fair,
workforce and
consistent, and inclusive approach, and recruitment campaigns
succession
target people with the skills required.
planning are in
An effective appraisal framework linked to the WDH DNA,
place; ensuring that
developing competencies and skills to meet the needs of the
WDH is seen as an
business, and an annual review of succession arrangements.
employer of choice,
with appropriate
salary and benefit
packages to attract
suitable candidates;
and ensuring the
organisation has
embraced the
importance of
equality and
diversity.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Impact of COVID-19 on key areas of WDH
COVID-19 has had an unprecedented impact on the economy. Whilst the long term
effects of COVID-19 remain unclear, in the short term it is expected that the
economy will enter recession, as economic output has fallen since lockdown has
been in place. This has been mitigated by the Government’s actions to support
employment, which in turn has enabled WDH customers to continue to pay their
rents.
WDH commenced its preparations for the COVID-19 crisis prior to the virus taking
hold within the UK. The first communication to employees on managing the risk was
published at the start of February 2020. WDH’s initial response was guided by an
adaptation of a Government pandemic response checklist, which was approved by
the Corporate Management Board (CMB) in mid-February 2020, and its
implementation delegated to its business continuity teams.
Housing Management and Rent Collection

These services have continued to be delivered in the main to provide support to
customers during this difficult period. Home visiting and face to face contact
with customers ceased prior to lockdown, with more digital methods being used
to interact with customers.
Despite the challenging circumstances, the Debt Team have been fully
operational throughout the lockdown period and have continued to achieve high
levels of activity with customers, using phone and other digital methods of
contact. WDH has maintained a strong cashflow position throughout this period
creating stability for the business.
Arrears levels to the end of September 2020 have stayed in line with the year
end position. There is a possibility that WDH may see arrears increasing when
the Government ends the Job Retention Scheme, as failing businesses result in
increased unemployment levels. The increase in unemployment will result in
the increase in Universal Credit claims. This upskilling of employees will allow
increased capacity to respond to ‘spikes’ in Universal Credit workload or if a
second lockdown occurs. WDH’s Business Plan has long term voids and bad
debt rate of 5.5% combined which gives the business capacity to manage any
future increases. Current performance to 2020 being 2.07% (2019: 2.45%).

Community Benefit Society number 7530

11

Commercial in confidence

Wakefield and District Housing Limited

Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Impact of COVID-19 on key areas of WDH continued
New build and Reinvestment Programmes
Due to the lockdown, WDH have experienced a four month delay in the delivery
of its large capital reinvestment and new build programmes post year end, due
to the lower spend this has improved WDH’s cashflow position. WDH has
remobilised both programmes in June and July 2020.
The delay will result in a reduced number of new build handovers during
2020/2021 of circa 100 units, the Business Plan has factored in for these units
to be delivered over the coming years. WDH has experienced no decrease in
demand for shared ownership units, all stock carried forward at March 2020 is
currently forecast to be sold during 2020/2021.
The capital reinvestment expenditure will be lower circa £6m in 2020/2021.
Due to the refinancing, WDH has removed the restrictive debt service
covenants from its debt portfolio and now has increased flexibility to release
capacity in its Business Plan and can increase expenditure in future years, to
ensure the long term viability of its housing stock is maintained and the
expenditure as set out by the Stock Condition Survey is delivered.
All outright sales units within the group are sold through Bridge Homes
(Yorkshire) LLP. Bridge Homes has experienced no decrease in demand for
units, all completed units carried forward at March 2020 are currently forecast
to be sold during 2020/2021. Bridge Homes is forecasting sales of 60 units for
2020/2021 (14 affordable rent units, which are sold to WDH and 46 Outright
sale units).
Landlord Compliance and Repairs Service
WDH moved to an emergency repairs only service from 24 March 2020. This
was compliant with Government guidance for landlords and tenants. All other
workstreams, including gas servicing, were paused. Further guidance was
issued by the Government, as well as the Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
and the Regulator of Social housing (RSH), giving more details on the works
expected to continue during the lockdown period and specific guidance for
landlords. The RSH advice was to follow the technical guidance provided,
whilst ensuring the needs of tenants are met.
The RSH also confirmed that if there were instances where mandatory
inspections or services were overdue, this would not result in non-compliance
or a potential Regulatory Notice or downgrade, provided all reasonable steps
were taken to gain access, and that this could be evidenced.
WDH restarted its gas servicing programme on 30 March 2020. Revised
processes were adopted in accordance with Government guidelines and
information published by Gas Safe, whilst ensuring that an appropriate audit
trail was maintained.
Community Benefit Society number 7530
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Impact of COVID-19 on key areas of WDH continued
Financial Viability
WDH’s financial performance has not been materially impacted by COVID-19.
The income of the organisation has not been affected in the short term, with no
increase in bad debts currently being experienced and cash collection rates
have been maintained during quarter two of 2020/2021. All rental income
expected during 2020/2021 is forecasted to be collected in line with previous
performance.
Operating costs are not forecast to increase significantly from the approved
budgeted position. WDH’s primary costs are employee salaries and the
provision of materials to deliver repairs to its properties, neither of these have
been impacted by COVID-19, although the social distancing compliant working
methods will impact the business in the medium term.
WDH furloughed 396 employees and accessed the Governments furlough
grant scheme. WDH has claimed £1.6m of income though the scheme as at
September 2020. The furlough income has enabled WDH to maintain its
headcount during the lockdown. No redundancy costs or reduction in
headcount has been made and all staff had returned to employment by
September 2020. The furlough scheme has enabled WDH to quickly remobilise
all employees back to employment.
The Group has strong positive operational cashflows and post year end WDH
finalised the refinancing of the organisation’s loan facilities, during April 2020.
This has strengthened the financial resources of the organisation from the year
end position.
A fully revised Business Plan for 2020/2021, reflective of COVID-19, was
presented and approved by the Board on 10 September 2020. This reflected
performance for the first quarter of 2020/2021 and the revised delivery
programmes for 2020/2021 within the reinvestment and new build programmes.
Expenditure was reduced in these areas due the impact of COVID-19. WDH
stress tests its Business Plan using scenarios of increasing severity that impact
on income and costs. This identifies the businesses key sensitivities and
outlines the business strategies available to the Board to mitigate these issues.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Impact of COVID-19 on key areas of WDH continued
Financial Viability Continued
The stress testing reviews the ability of the business to deal with changes in its
key risks, which are future rental settlements, inflation increasing operating
costs, exposure to shared ownership sales risk, changes in interest rates, large
scale loss of stock and changes in long term arrears and bad debt rates.
This revised Business Plan, as approved on 10 September 2020, demonstrates
that WDH is able to deliver on the key strategic outcomes of the Board and is
able to service debt facilities, whilst continuing to comply with lenders’
covenants. This will be submitted to the RSH for review as part of the
organisation’s statutory requirements.
Housing Valuation – Existing Use Value for Social Housing (EU-VSH)
The annual EU-VSH valuation of WDH’s stock is one of the key areas involving
estimates and judgements. Savills carried out the valuation as at
31 March 2020, on the basis of a “material valuation uncertainty” as per VPS3
and VPGA 10 of the RICS red book global for both the EUV-SH and Market
Value (MV) properties. This implies less certainty and a higher degree of
caution should be attached to the valuation as a result of the COVID-19 impact
on global markets at the time the report was issued.
As a result of the stable market conditions since the year end, Savills no longer
consider that there is a material uncertainty when valuing on the basis of
EUV-SH and the RICS Material Uncertainty Leaders’ Forum have agreed that
the material valuation uncertainty be lifted with effect from 26 May 2020. No
material valuation uncertainty clauses are being used in EUV-SH valuation
reports issued after this date. WDH has not received a revised valuation report
since 31 March 2020 and the clauses were in effect as at the reporting date.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Brexit Preparations
Prior to the Withdrawal Agreement being approved ahead of the UK's exit from the
European Union on 31 January 2020, WDH had comprehensive preparations in
place for a ‘no-deal’ Brexit.
These included arrangements to guarantee continuity of key frontline activities in
neighbourhood and property services. Sufficient assurance in the organisations
ability to continue to deliver services and in sourcing of supplies are in place to
ensure continuity of the critical services.
Longer term scenarios were developed to consider the impact of issues, such as an
economic decline on the business, its tenants, and estates. The focus of the
scenarios included lower rental income caused by economic recession, long term
downturns in the housing market, impacts of interest rate changes and increases in
underlying inflation that effect material and labour costs.
Several scenarios of increasing severity were also used to stress test the long term
financial viability with a hard Brexit included in this testing
High Rise Properties
WDH has 12 blocks that are over 18 metres high, none of which have the same type
of cladding as that used in Grenfell Tower, Aluminium Composite Materials (ACM).
WDH has not experienced any significant adverse impact on demand, the carrying
value, or the security valuation of its assets arising from the implication of the
Grenfell incident.
Surveys have been carried out on the high rise properties which have a rendered
finish. These have concluded that there are no ACM or plastic coated claddings, the
presence of combustible materials on or behind rendered panels has potentially
been detected, and concerns raised regarding the fire breaks. The findings relate to
four blocks within Wakefield City Centre, together with the block at Knottingley which
had recently undergone a range of fire safety upgrades.
WDH have agreed a plan of action with the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service
(WYFRS). The four blocks in Wakefield will be prioritised for the high rise upgrade
programme. The block in Knottingley does not require any remedial work due to the
fire suppression work already undertaken.
High rise properties represent less than 2.5% of WDH’s stock in total with only five
blocks affected by the cladding issue. The additional fire prevention measures are
funded through existing budgets, work will commence on the remediation works in
2020/2021, with no deterioration in covenant compliance. Following detailed
consideration of all assets, no issues have been identified that would be cause for
concern. The only impairment that has been recognised in the Financial Statements
is for assets earmarked for demolition.
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Report of the Board
Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Opportunities Continued
Financial Risk Management
The Board retains responsibility for determining policy and strategic oversight of the
organisation’s treasury risks and receives independent advice on treasury policy.
The Board uses various financial instruments to fund operations, including secured
loans and cash balances. The existence of these financial instruments exposes the
Group to a number of key financial risks against which prudent scenario planning
and stress testing are adopted. All areas have been reviewed by WDH’s Board and
external treasury advisors as part of the refinancing.
Interest Rate Risk
Operations and investment in new build developments are financed through a
mixture of operational cashflows, retained surpluses and bank borrowings.
Exposure to interest fluctuations on borrowings is managed through the use of both
fixed and variable rate instruments to ensure that the Group and Association is
protected against potential adverse movements in the markets. The Group does not
apply hedge accounting.
Liquidity Risk
The Group mitigates this financial risk by ensuring sufficient cash and loan capacity
is available to meet foreseeable needs and that invested cash assets are secure and
readily available.
Credit Risk
The Group’s principal credit risk relates to tenant arrears. This risk is mitigated
through a number of financial inclusion measures which aim to ensure tenancies are
sustainable. Universal Credit and Welfare reforms compound this risk.
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National Housing Federation (NHF) Excellence in Governance
Following an annual review, the Board confirms that the Association complies with
the NHF’s Code of Governance: Promoting Board Excellence for Housing
Associations (2015 edition) and that the Board is committed to achieving Excellence
in Governance in relation to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Constitution and composition of the Board and Committees;
Essential functions of the Board, Committees and Chairs;
Board skills assessments, renewal and review;
Conduct of Board and Committee business;
Audit and risk;
The Chief Executive; and
Conduct, probity and openness.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Refinancing
WDH finalised the refinancing of the Group and Association’s loan facilities during
April 2020, this included the repayment and cancellation of all existing syndicated
loan arrangements of £500m, of which £417.3m was drawn. These were provided
by Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander and the European Investment Bank (EIB).
This existing facility was replaced with new bi-lateral funding arrangements of
£520m, of which £400m of the total facility is currently drawn, as at September 2020,
with the Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander and The Housing Finance Corporation.
The refinancing took place to enable the Board of WDH to deliver on the strategic
growth targets and remove the restrictive loan covenants that were linked to the
historic large scale voluntary transfer (LSVT) loan arrangement, that were restricting
the Association’s ability to drive growth and invest in new housing stock.
The Association incurred loan indemnity payments of £31m which were payable in
April 2020 to the EIB when the refinancing completed. These cash flows were
expected at the year end and therefore were included in the estimated cash flows of
the debt instrument at the year end. The average cost of borrowing of all loans
forecast to be drawn down as at March 2021 is 3.72%, before the refinancing WDH’s
average cost of borrowing equalled 3.97%.
The refinancing increases the financial resources available to the Group and
Association to meet the Board’s ambitions for growth. Further details of the
refinancing can be found in Note 33.
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Post Balance Sheet Events Continued
COVID-19
COVID-19 has had an unprecedented impact on the economy. Whilst the long-term
effects of COVID-19 remain unclear, in the short term it is expected that the
economy will enter recession, as economic output has fallen since lockdown has
been in place. This has been mitigated by the Government’s actions to support
employment, which in turn has enabled WDH’s customers to continue to pay their
rents. WDH have not experienced any negative financial impact of COVID-19 other
than a four month delay in the reinvestment and new build programmes.
Closure of NSS
NSS and all employees associated with the subsidiary transferred to Together
Housing Association (THA) on the 30 March 2020. NSS was made up of three
partner Associations WDH, THA and Arches Housing. THA took the decision during
the financial year to return all repairs work to their inhouse repairs service from the
31 March 2020.
This decision meant that NSS was no longer financially viable due to the majority of
the turnover of the Association being the delivery of THA’s repairs service.
Employees associated with this contract have Transfer of Undertakings (Protection
of Employment) (TUPE) transferred to THA. The subsidiary will be wound up during
2020/2021. The closure of this subsidiary does not have a material impact on the
cost base or future performance of WDH.
Future Developments
WDH’s Board reviewed and reset the strategic objectives of the Association during
2020. Renewing WDH’s commitment to be a landlord of choice by putting the
customer first, being a partner of choice to create better places to live, being a
positive force of leadership to develop the potential of people; and continue to be a
well-managed and well governed association.
To deliver these objectives WDH will continue to invest in its customer services and
involve WDH’s customers in shaping the future of those services. This will ensure
customers are supported to maintain tenancies and that the organisation can meet
the ongoing challenge of Universal Credit. WDH’s continued investment in housing
and debt services has enabled WDH to mitigate this risk without experiencing a large
increase in arrears or tenancy turnover rates.
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Future Developments Continued
To ensure that the organisation continues to create better places to live, WDH will
increase the supply of new build units, with the aim of delivering 2,500 new homes
over the next five years. WDH’s approved Business Plan includes £221m of net
investment in new homes over the next five years, with £37m of net expenditure
planned for 2020/2021. This will be financed through the new loan facility. WDH will
continue to invest in its existing stock over the next five years, with £250m of
investment planned for routine repairs and reinvestment works, reflecting the
updated Stock Condition Survey undertaken during 2019/2020. Budgeted
reinvestment works for 2020/2021 are £23m. WDH’s strong operating cashflow and
the refinancing ensures that WDH has secured funding to deliver these ambitions.
WDH will continue to invest in skills and enterprise projects in its communities to
support and improve the life ambitions of tenants, while also continuing to invest in
its workforce to ensure that it is fit for the future with the necessary skills base to
deliver the Board’s ambitions. This continued investment will ensure WDH remains
well governed and viable.
The refinancing completed in April 2020, as well as the existing financial headroom
contained within the Business Plan, will allow the Board to deliver the increased new
supply, create the freedoms necessary to run the Association at its optimum capacity
and to deliver increased added social value to local communities.
COVID-19 has impacted delivery of these ambitions during quarter one of
2020/2021. WDH has remobilised all services during June 2020 and will restart
delivery of all programmes throughout the remainder of the financial year. WDH
expects to fully deliver on the Board’s ambitions over the next five years. The impact
of COVID-19 on 2020/2021 is reported in the Principal Risks, Uncertainties and
Opportunities section.
Going Concern
In the year WDH are reporting a loss of £97.9m this loss is due to the refinancing
transaction that was completed post year end, but WDH had served a prepayment
notice pre-year end. Under FRS 102, the Board are required to estimate any
changes in expected cash flows arising on basic financial liabilities held at amortised
cost at the effective interest rate, as a result £111.4m was recognised in Statement
of Comprehensive Income, £80m of this is a non cash movement. A prepayment
notice was served to the syndicate on 12 February all loans became repayable
within one year. As a result WDH recognised a current liability position of £440m.
Post year end the current liability position is reversed on derecognition of the old
syndicated loans and the recognition of the bilateral new loans.
The Group has strong positive operational cashflows, with £98m of cash reserves as
at the 31 March 2020. WDH retained its G1/V1 rating for Governance and Financial
Viability from the Regulator of Social Housing during 2019/2020.
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Going Concern Continued
Post year end, WDH finalised the refinancing of the organisation’s loan facilities,
during April 2020. The existing facility was replaced with new bi-lateral funding
arrangements of £520m, of which £400m of the total facility is currently drawn, as at
September 2020, with the Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander and The Housing
Finance Corporation, which has increased the undrawn facilities from the year end
position. The majority of WDH’s income, which is generated from the provision of
social housing, has not been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
This increased capacity provides adequate resources with which to finance
committed investment and development programmes, as well as supporting the
Group’s day to day operations and respond to the challenges presented by the
COVID-19 Pandemic.
Detailed and challenging stress testing and sensitivity analysis under a rigorous suite
of increasing onerous scenarios are used to test the business plan annually, which
included mitigating actions. The Business Plan demonstrates that WDH is able to
service debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants and is fully
compliant with the requirements of the Financial Forecast Return (FFR) review
carried out annually by the Regulator of Social Housing, which allows the regulator to
review the ability of social housing providers to meet the requirements of the
Governance and Financial Viability Standard and provides regulatory oversight of
WDH’s Business Plan.
After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
being a period of at least 12 months after the date on which the Report and Financial
Statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern
basis for the Financial Statements.
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board for the Annual
Report and Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society legislation requires the Board to
prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law the Board have
elected to prepare the Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable laws), including FRS 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland. Under the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Society legislation the Board must not approve the Financial Statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, and surplus or
deficit of the Association and Group for that period. In preparing these Financial
Statements, the Board are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) Accounting by Registered Housing Providers
2018, have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements; and
• prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Association will continue in business.
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Association
and enable it to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008
and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing
(April 2019). It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Association and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
The Board are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Association's website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board for the Annual
Report and Financial Statements (continued)
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) was held on 29 September 2020 at Merefield
House, Castleford.
External Auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP, having expressed their willingness to continue in office. A
resolution to reappoint them as external auditors for the next financial year will be
proposed at the AGM.
Approval
The report of the Board was approved by the Board on 15 October 2020 and signed
on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Community Benefit Society number 7530

22

Commercial in confidence

Wakefield and District Housing Limited

Strategic Report
WDH is a registered provider with charitable objectives. WDH supports, facilitates,
and empowers individuals and communities to have the confidence to become
self-sustaining through targeted support that delivers Value for Money (VFM)
outcomes through the creation and utilisation of a social dividend.
WDH pursues three key business imperatives:
•
•
•

the provision of good quality, well managed housing for rent, primarily to people
who are unable to rent or buy at open market rates;
the supply of supported housing and care for people who need additional housing
related support or care; and
the optimum utilisation of resources that delivers an increasing new supply of
affordable housing, through investment in new build developments, to improve
the long term life chances of tenants and local communities.

Over the past 12 months, WDH has continued to make a significant investment in
new housing supply, existing properties and tenant support, to deliver increased
VFM to all stakeholders. The resource capacity and scale of the business delivers
broad ranging social and economic benefits to local tenants and communities
through the implementation of the Business Strategy.
The business successfully delivered the first modules of an integrated Enterprise
Resource Planning software, Finance and HR from 1 April 2019, and continues to
implement plans to enhance and expand its approach to digital service provision and
integrated software solutions. This will enable significant efficiencies and growth
potential over the long term, through automation and improved integration, to deliver
the Vision of the Board.

Vision
The Vision is to ‘Create Confident Communities’. The Vision has rolling five year
milestones to inspire, transform and promote excellence:
•

2025 – Making real change through social outcomes: by working collaboratively
and inclusively to deliver services people want and need.

•

2030 – Improving lives through continued social investment: by supporting
communities and promoting self-sufficiency.

•

2035 – Leading sustainability through social change: through the provision of net
zero carbon services.

The Business Strategy set outs of how WDH intends to achieve its Vision, working in
partnership with stakeholders to meet the needs and aspirations of local people.
Consolidation of core housing services; growth in commercial activities and the
delivery of increasing volumes of new build development; and the creation of
additional social value, form the basis of the Business Strategy.
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Business and Financial Review
The Group’s Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position are presented on pages 50 and 54 respectively.
Group turnover is £158.5m (2019: £155.6m), an overall increase of 1.9%, this is
mainly due to an increase in first tranche shared ownership sales and in line with
expected performance. Income from social housing lettings at £138.7m increased
from the prior year (2019: £137.7m), reflecting the ongoing new build programme,
offsetting the 1% rent cut.
Income from other social housing activities increased by 23% to £16m (2019: £13m),
largely reflecting an increase in first tranche shared home ownership sales from the
new build programme, resulting in sales of £10.4m (2019: £7.8m). Income from
non-social housing activities decreased marginally to £3.8m (2019: £4.9m).
For the year ended 31 March

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

Total turnover £’000

158,491

155,561

155,047

158,491

156,321

Income from lettings £’000

138,719

137,736

137,869

141,347

141,496

Operating surplus £’000

31,720*

33,012*

50,157*

50,166

37,371

Operating margin (overall)

20.0%*

21.2%

32.4%*

32.1%

25.1%

21.9%

23.4%

37.0%

37.1%

28.0%

Operating margin (social housing)
(Loss) / Surplus for the year £’000**
EBITDA MRI Interest cover***
Operating Costs as % of turnover
Reinvestment Spend Revenue £’000

(97,938)

14,840

30,765

30,577

17,228

31.8%

193.4%

254.4%

238.7%

209.0%

81%

80%

68%

68%

75%

18,232

17,626

7,206

13,231

19,202

*These figures include the profit on disposal of assets, in 2017/2018 financial reporting requirements changed operating surplus
to include profit on disposal of assets. From 2019/2020 figures also include loss of revaluation of Investment properties, due to
reporting requirement changes, with 2018/2019 restated.
**Surplus for the year before exceptional finance charges £13,432k, (£97,938k + £111,370k)
***EDITDA MRI equals 217.9% if exceptional finance charges of £111,370k are excluded.

Operating costs increased by 2.2% to £127.3m (2019: £124.5m) but were below the
budgeted position. This increase reflects the continued investment in the revenue
generating assets and the nature of the in-year capital improvement programme,
which focuses on long term improvement works and investment in electrical, fire and
gas compliance improvements. As well as increased service provision reflecting
investment in repairs and customer support services, there is a focus on protecting
and improving the front line services delivered to tenants.
The operating surplus has decreased marginally from 2019 but remains strong at
£31.7m (2019: £33m) and is ahead of budgeted expectation of £28.4m. The overall
operating margin is 20% (2019: 21.2%), excluding the surplus from the disposal of
property, and the social housing margin was 21.9% (2019: 23.4%).
The higher operating surplus in both 2018 and 2017 being largely attributable to
lower delivery of revenue reinvestment expenditure in 2018 and 2017, compared
with delivery in 2016, 2019 and 2020.
Community Benefit Society number 7530

24

Commercial in confidence

Wakefield and District Housing Limited

Strategic Report
Business and Financial Review (continued)
The Group loss of £(97.9)m was due to a one off exceptional finance charge of
£111.4m, further details below. Before exceptional finance charges, the Group made
a surplus of £13.4m (2019: £14.9m), this is marginally lower than the previous year
but is ahead of the budgeted position.
Interest cover in earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, less
improvement works capitalised (‘EBITDA MRI’) at 31.8% has decreased from
193.4%, due the exceptional finance charge of £111.3m which relates to refinancing.
The carrying value of current assets overall is on an upward trend, reflecting the
Group’s and Association’s strategy to increase investment in new build development.
Housing properties are valued at £776.7m (2019: £708.6m) using Existing Use Value
for Social Housing (EUV-SH).
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

776,702

708,558

667,947

662,118

659,596

23,121

20,907

17,179

16,389

17,433

10,600

11,850

12,000

12,705

12,685

129

147

153

202

220

4,421

4,042

3,241

1,700

993

814,973

745,504

700,520

693,114

690,927

(439,893)*

83,704

75,900

55,509

29,247

375,080

829,208

776,420

748,623

720,174

For the year ended 31 March
Tangible fixed assets – housing
properties
Tangible and Intangible fixed
assets – other
Investment properties
Homebuy Loans
Investment in joint venture
Total fixed assets
Net current (liabilities) / assets
Total assets less current liabilities

*includes one exceptional finance charge of £111.3m which relate to refinancing and loans due within 1 year, see note 25 Debt.

Other fixed assets at £16m (2019: £15.2m) reflects additions to assets under
construction, and furniture, fixtures and fittings, offset by reduced carrying value of
other asset types as a result of depreciation and disposals. Marginal in year
additions and disposals, along with a decrease in the valuation of the commercial
shop and garage portfolio held for letting, has reduced the carrying value of
investment properties to £10.6m (2019: £11.9m). The investment in the
development Joint Venture, Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP, increasing to £4.4m
(2019: £4m), reflecting WDH’s profit share during the year. No cash investment has
been made in Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP during the year.
Total assets less current liabilities of £375m (2019: £829.2m) reflects the recognition
of loans within one year due to serving notice on the debt facilities shortly before the
year end in preparation of the refinancing event which concluded in April 2020.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
The stock of housing has increased, reflecting a stable number of Right to Buy
(RTB), Right to Acquire (RTA) and disposals, and significant growth in new build
properties, the net increase being 200 additional revenue generating assets.
Social housing stock owned as
at the year ended 31 March
General needs
Supported and older people

2020
No.
29,344
1,691

2019
No.
29,264
1,676

2018
No.
29,110
1,714

2017
No.
29,093
1,749

2016
No.
29,137
1,878

597

492

419

308

235

31,632

31,432

31,243

31,150

31,250

Low cost home ownership
Total social housing stock
owned

Supported housing continues to be rationalised, reflecting localised reduced demand
and the obsolescence of stock over time. Low cost home ownership continued to
increase, experiencing a 21% increase to 597 units.
Combined void rent loss and bad debt provision remain marginal and well within
Board trigger limits. Strong debt management and continued support for tenants and
potential tenants, is holding current arrears at acceptable levels, performance being
consistent with Board expectations, as the organisation has continued to respond to
the impact of Universal Credit rolled out across the region from November 2018.
For the year ended 31 March
Rent losses (voids and bad debts as %
of income from lettings)
Current tenant rent arrears (as %
income less grants from lettings)

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2.07%

2.45%

2.60%

1.96%

2.10%

3.53%

6.27%

2.95%

5.87%

5.78%

Demand for the vast majority of stock remains strong and debt collection
performance is very good.
Current tenant rent arrears were 3.53% compared to 6.27% in 2019, the improved
performance for 2020 being largely due to the timing of the housing benefit payment.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
Strong net operating cashflows are sufficient to fund existing, and Business Plan
approved, investment in new housing supply.
The refinancing has created investment capacity and flexibility to enable the Board of
WDH to invest in new housing stock and deliver on strategic growth targets over the
coming years, in order to realise the full potential of the business.
Year ended 31 March
Loans (due over one year)
Pension liability

2020
£’000
-

2019
£’000
(417,300)

(79,478)

(62,859)

(42,769)

(41,973)

(25,404)

(752)

(652)

(2,769)

(2,829)

(1,104)

Other long term liabilities
Valuation reserve
Income expenditure reserve
Total reserves

219,317
75,533
294,850

2018
2017
2016
£’000
£’000
£’000
(409,500) (410,600) (412,800)

169,976

150,612

161,951

171,422

178,421

170,770

131,270

109,444

348,397

321,382

293,221

280,866

WDH is a member of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF) and records a
liability of £79.5m (2019: £62.8m), an increase of £18.4m from the previous year,
mainly due to lower than anticipated asset returns over the year. There has been a
change to the financial assumptions over the period, with the discount rate,
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation and the salary increase assumption all
reducing by 0.2%. However, this has only had a negligible change in the year end
position. The pension liability also includes a provision for McCloud and the
Guaranteed Minimum Pension, more details of this are in Note 9.
Other long term liabilities are repayable grants.
Increases in the valuation reserve reflect the carrying values of assets at EUV-SH,
and the income and expenditure reserve, loss for the year.
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Business and Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity is maintained at minimal cost through strong operational cash inflows and
an appropriate mix of fixed and variable borrowings, supported by external
professional advice.
Year ended 31 March

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

Liquidity (current assets as a
ratio of current liabilities)

0.25

5.33

5.92

4.17

2.83

1.81

1.88

2.77

2.53

1.92

179.8

120.4

128.0

140.8

147.4

13,192

13,347

13,142

13,252

13,245

Interest cover (operating
surplus divided by interest
payable)
Gearing (total loans as a
percentage of reserves)
Debt per Unit £’s

Strong, positive operational cashflows continue; net cash inflows from operating
activities remain positive at £65.2m (2019: £58.3m)
Debt per unit at some £13.2k has shown a slight decrease due to marginal
reductions in total loans and an increase in the number of housing units and remains
in line with prior years.
As at March 2020, WDH had existing fixed and floating rate debt, at £323m and
£94m respectively, with interest rates ranging from 1.41% to 6.7%, which creates
sufficient hedging against interest rate increases; the weighted average cost of
capital is 3.97%. No breaches of the covenant occurred during the year.
Undrawn loan facilities of £75m (2019: £75m) were available under existing funding
arrangements.
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Delivering the WDH Vision
The Vision is to ‘Create Confident Communities’.
In pursuit of this Vision, the 2020 Business Strategy ‘Delivering the Vision; set out
WDH’s ambitions in delivering its strategic objectives, against the 2020 Vision
Milestone ‘An enterprise with social impacts: through developing a model for
sustainable living in mixed tenure communities.’
In support of the Vision to create confident communities, the following strategic
objectives and ambitions to the 2020 milestone were pursued:
Strategic Objective

Business Ambitions

To be a landlord of choice by
putting the customer first.

Building Better Places: Invest in more new
homes and land to meet the growing need for
affordable housing and become a leading regional
housing provider
Delivering Customer Excellence: Create
excellent customer experience by offering a range
of services that maximise choice, opportunity,
health and wellbeing.
A Digital Future: Be a digital business and enable
tenants to maximise their digital opportunities.

To be a positive force of leadership
and influence to develop the
potential of people.
To be a partner of choice to create
better places to live.

To adopt best practice in good
governance.

Opportunities for All: Maximise opportunities for
our people and those who want to work for us.

Annual Internal Performance Targets
In delivering our ambitions, the Board established the following challenging highlevel performance targets.
Board Targets
Finance / Viability:
Cashable efficiency saving to date.
Development / Growth: New supply
delivered.
Development / Growth: Spend against
programme.
Assets: Spend (ex VAT) against capital
programme.
Resources: Sickness absence.
Housing: Current and former rent debt.
Programme Delivery: Validated
electrical tests completed against
planned.
Programme Delivery:
Gas services completed against planned.

2019/2020
Target
At least
£250k

2019/2020
Actual

Outcome

£265k

Achieved

340

402

Achieved

£28.7m

£28.7m

Achieved

£27.9m

£26.7m

925 days

1,134 days

Less than
£7.25m

£6.87m

Achieved

6,253

6,164

Nearly
Achieved*

29,752

30,021

Achieved

Nearly
Achieved*
Not
Achieved

*Nearly achieved is within 10% of target.
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Annual Board Performance Targets (continued)
Finance / Viability: £265k (2018/2019: £459k) of recurring cashable efficiency
savings were generated for reinvestment in the delivery of additional homes, existing
assets and delivering increased social added value. This has exceeded the target of
£250k.
Development / Growth: £28.7m was invested in new build development and
acquisitions, adding 402 new social housing homes (2018/2019: 402 units),
exceeding the target of 340. The average development scheme payback being
35 years, five years under the 40 year target.
Reinvestment in Assets: Spend of £26.7m was achieved against the capital
improvement programme. This expenditure was £1m under target, mainly due to a
delay in one environmental improvement scheme that will be delivered in the
2020/2021 programme. The programme for 2020/2021 is in place and a further
£46m will be invested in line with the Business Plan.
Resources: Sickness absence at 1,134 days per month on average over the
12 month period, was 23% above the target of 925 days, and an increase from 1,128
days in 2018/2019. This has been driven by long term sickness, management
continue to support employees back into work. In addition, an increase in sickness
was seen during March 2020 due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
employees self-isolating.
Housing: The amount of current and former tenant debt of £6.87m was within the
£7.25m target. This has increased slightly from the 2018/2019 position of £6.79m.
The results are positive given the continued impact of Universal Credit which was
introduced across the district from November 2018. This high level of performance
reflects the resources invested to support tenants and proactively manage cash
collection.
Programme Delivery: The annual programme of 6,253 electrical tests was
completed, however of these 6,164 were validated, narrowly missing target. Those
not validated are the properties where WDH has had issues accessing the property
which are progressing through WDH’s access procedure, to ensure the required
tests can be fully completed.
There were no gas services outstanding beyond their due date, with 30,021 gas
services being completed in the year, against the planned programme of 29,752.
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Securing VFM against our ambitions
In delivering WDH’s ambitions, the focus aligned to the business model, is to
increase VFM in order to deliver an increased social dividend from core housing
activities and use it in the most effective way to deliver social benefits, as well as
much needed new homes.
Overall, a social dividend, total income less core operating costs, of £68m
(2018/2019: £74m) was achieved. This fell short of the agreed target of £71m set in
line with Business Plan expectations, mainly due to capital programme underspend
and a delay in commencing Phase Two of the Dynamics Enterprise Resource
Planning solution implementation.
VFM performance has been measured against the intended business and VFM
outcomes aligned to the ambitions set out in the Business Strategy. In addition, a
range of additional metrics, including the Regulator of Social Housing’s VFM Metrics,
NHF Sector Scorecard and HouseMark measures have been used, enabling
comparison of performance to the sector and peer Associations.

Opportunities for All: Creating a Sustainable and Connected
Workforce
Ensuring a sustainable workforce with the right skills and competencies to deliver
services is critical to the ongoing success of the business. In order to do this, it is
vital that employees have a package that is fit for purpose and attractive in an
increasingly competitive market.
High levels of employee satisfaction generate VFM efficiencies through improved
retention, higher levels of capability, increased productivity, and lower transaction
costs.
Employee satisfaction with WDH was 79.5% in 2019/2020 behind the intended target
of 85.6% and showing a decrease from 84.6% in the previous employee survey
during 2017/2018. Work is being undertaken to implement plans to respond to the
views of employees, to ensure positive change and improvement in overall
satisfaction, with a significant focus being placed on agile working.
Supporting the wellbeing of employees and providing opportunities for development
are key in improving satisfaction. During 2019/2020, particular focus was paid to
mental health awareness and employee Wellbeing Champions were introduced
across the business.
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Opportunities for All: Creating a Sustainable and Connected Workforce
(continued)
To ensure maximum VFM from training and development, focus has been placed on
expanding the number of courses delivered digitally through eLearning and
webinars, delivering 23% of courses digitally, against an ambitious target of 50%.
This will continue during 2020/2021; remobilisation following the COVID-19
pandemic placing an increased demand on digital delivery.
WDH retains Investors in People accredited to Gold Status and work has
commenced towards achievement of the new Investors in People Version 6
standard, with reassessment planned during Autumn 2020.
WDH’s strong people focus has ensured high standards of service have been
maintained whilst ensuring low overhead costs, at 8.14% of adjusted turnover. The
Sector Scorecard definition requires a notional adjustment for turnover related to any
internal repairs and maintenance DLO.
WDH has continued to build on the implementation of the Enterprise Resource
Planning solution, Dynamics, with further enhancements delivered across finance,
procurement, HR, and payroll functions. A range of digital tools and enhancements
have been deployed across the business to facilitate agile working and enable teams
to operate more effectively. This will help to drive further efficiencies and reductions
in core overhead costs.

Building Better Places: Creating Sustainable and Connected
Homes
Increasing the supply of new homes
The development programme ensures a mix of tenure, providing social and
affordable homes for rent, and intermediate and shared ownership, balancing the
requirements for new homes, and generating returns for reinvestment in existing and
new homes in line with strategic objectives.
In 2019/2020, £28.7m was invested in new build development and acquisitions, in
line with the planned investment target. This added 402 new social housing homes
(2018/2019: 402 units) across the Yorkshire region, equivalent to 1.3% of stock,
exceeding the target of 340. Of these, 285 (71%) were made available for social or
affordable rent and 117 (29%) for intermediate or shared ownership.
There were 44 homes (2018/2019: 56) developed through Bridge Homes (Yorkshire)
LLP, WDH’s joint venture with Wakefield Council, with the surplus from the sale of
new homes reinvested in the provision of new homes.
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Increasing the supply of new homes (continued)
Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper Median Lower
Quartile

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/2018

WDH
2018/2019

Number of
units developed
(social housing)

300

402

310

132

90

Upper

402

New supply
delivered %
(social housing)
RSH VFM
Metric 2a

1.0%

1.3%

1.9%

1.2%

0.8%

Median

1.3%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

Not
Compared

0%

New supply
delivered %
(non-social
housing)
RSH VFM
Metric 2b

Reinvestment in new and existing homes has decreased marginally to 5.8%,
(2018/2019: 6.7%) largely because of increases in the valuation of housing stock.
WDH invested £45m in 2020 (2019: £47.4m). Performance for 2019/2020 is
expected to move to lower quartile when compared to peers.
Performance
Measure

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median Lower
Quartile

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

WDH
2017/2018

WDH
2018/2019

% reinvestment
in new and
existing homes
RSH VFM
Metric 1

5.9%

6.5%

11.9%

8.0%

6.4%

Median

5.8%

Gearing
RSH VFM
Metric 3

49.5%

46.8%

34.7%

46.9%

57.8%

Median

55.4%

Gearing has increased to 55.4% (2018/2019: 46.8%), as a result of the exceptional
finance charge, off setting an increase in the valuation of housing properties, and
strong cashflows which continue to minimise borrowing requirements. Performance
is expected to remain median quartile when compared to peers.
The Board has ambitious plans to increase delivery and has created capacity for
further growth following refinancing, with plans to deliver an additional 2,500 new
homes over the next five years. Establishing a development company to enable the
provision of new homes through direct site acquisition and development will support
this, and we will continue to seek opportunities for additional joint ventures with
strategic partners.
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Managing and Improving Existing Assets
Improving assets and delivering increased VFM through the rationalisation of
under-performing assets continues to be a key area of focus.
All existing properties are ‘RAG’ (Red, Amber, Green) rated in terms of income
generation, demand, location, property type and the long-term investment
requirements. The RAG profile has improved over time delivering increased VFM
because of targeted investment, and the rationalisation of under-performing assets.
At 31 March 2020, 98.6% of the 31,632 housing stock was classed as viable (Green
or Amber rated) and under WDH’s reinvestment criteria.
At Transfer, in 2005, there were 2,372 ‘red’ properties. At 31 March 2020, 457
properties (1.4%) were classed as ‘red’, unviable due to significant issues, low
demand for property type and investment needs, an improved position on 2018/2019
at 521 (1.7%), though behind the intended target of 296. WDH has several large
redevelopment schemes of ex-independent living schemes which will be
redeveloped over the next 24 months. Once complete this figure will return to target.
Each ‘red’ property has an investment assessment that will lead to reinvestment and
retention in the association’s stock, or the property will be disposed to remove the
future costs from the Business Plan.
Change in stock profile since transfer

No. Properties

30,000

Amber: Medium levels
of reinvestment
needed to move to
green

25,000
20,000
15,000

Red: High level of
reinvestment needed
or low demand

2005/2006

2018/2019

2019/2020

Green: Low investment
needed. Can be
maintained with
minimum intervention.

WDH continues to invest in its stock to maintain long term viability, investment for
2019/2020 being £26.7m (2018/19: £28.6m). The cost per property of major and
cyclical works being £1,133.56.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Cost per
property major
and cyclical
works

£1316.61

£1324.19

Community Benefit Society number 7530

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile
£1,104.68

£1,334.22

£1,511.30

Median

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn
£1,133.56
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Managing and Improving Existing Assets (continued)
Delivering the highest standards of compliance and building safety across our
portfolio continues to be a major focus, achieving both regulatory requirements and
industry best practice to ensure the safety and well-being of our residents.
WDH focuses on a wide range of compliance and building safety issues, which
include the top six criteria of compliance - gas, electric, fire, water, asbestos and lifts,
and continue to deliver agreed programmes for inspection and improvement to
ensure high standards.
During 2019/2020 intended safety inspection programmes were completed meeting
targets for annual gas services, fire risk assessments, water legionella risk
assessments and inspections of lifts and hoists. The programme of 6,253 annual
electrical inspections was completed of which 6,164 were validated narrowly missing
the intended target. The asbestos programme was delivered, but slightly behind
intended target, due to restrictions arising from the COVID-19 Pandemic.
WDH continues to invest in delivering the highest standards of fire safety and
compliance in its high-rise buildings. Following a successful 2018/2019 pilot, during
2019/2020 year one of a three year improvement programme to our remaining 11
high rise blocks, commenced.
Work continues to improve the energy efficiency, of properties through continued
investment through a retrofit programme, with commitments to work towards a
minimum EPC rating B and C across all existing (non-new build) properties by 2030.
Repairs are completed efficiently with the average number of days taken to complete
repairs at 7 days, expected to remain upper quartile. Though this was behind the
target of 5 days, WDH have refocused on quality of service and on completing
repairs on the first visit. 94% of repairs were completed at the first visit, ahead of the
93% target and expected to remain median quartile.
Satisfaction with repairs and maintenance reduced marginally to 88% in 2019/2020,
which may result in a fall to median quartile when compared to Peers. Whilst this
shows a slight deterioration on the 2018/2019 result of 89.1%, overall dissatisfaction
remains low at 5.4%.
Performance
Measure
Average number
of calendar days
to complete
repairs
% of repairs
completed at first
visit
% of respondents
very or fairly
satisfied with
repairs and
maintenance

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

5

6

7.9

11.9

16.1

Upper

7

92%

93%

95.7%

91.4%

86.6%

Median

94%

90.6%

89.1%

88.2%

85.3%

79.6%

Upper

88.0%
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Managing and Improving Assets (continued)
The ratio of responsive repairs to planned maintenance at 0.65 remains relatively
consistent to 2018/2019 but has shown some increase, as spend on responsive
repairs has increased and spend on major repairs reduced. Performance is
anticipated to remain at median quartile.

Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Ratio of
responsive
repairs to
planned
maintenance

0.54

0.55

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer Group
2018/2019
Upper

Median

Lower

WDH
Quartile

0.86

0.68

0.53

Median

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

0.65

Occupancy performance remains strong at 99.4% and is expected to remain median
quartile performance.
The return generated from core housing assets of 3.6% is marginally lower than
2018/2019, due to the strength of WDH’s asset base and the increase in housing
stock values.
Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median Lower
Quartile

Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

Occupancy

99.7%

99.7%

99.7%

99.6%

99.1%

Median

99.4%

Return on capital
employed (ROCE)
RSH VFM Metric 7

6.7%

4.1%

5.9%

4.8%

4.0%

Upper

8.9%

The 2019/2020 Tenant Survey showed that satisfaction with the overall quality of
their home was 90.6%, this remains relatively consistent with 2018/2019 and is
anticipated to move to upper quartile.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

% of
respondents
very or fairly
satisfied with the
overall quality of
their home

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

90.4%

89.1%

90.1%

Community Benefit Society number 7530
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Outturn

90.6%
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Managing and Improving Existing Assets (continued)
Satisfaction with neighbourhoods as a place to live is 90%, an increase of 5% points
from 2018/2019, and is anticipated to move to upper quartile from the 2018/2019
median position.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

% of
respondents
very or fairly
satisfied with
their
neighbourhood
as a place to live

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

88.0%

85.2%

87.3%

85. 9%

83.3%

Median

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

90.0%

WDH Estate Management and Assets Teams continue to be proactive to deliver
VFM, working with tenants to improve the quality of estates and neighbourhoods
through the implementation of environmental improvement schemes, and with
partners to deliver major regeneration schemes across neighbourhoods. A particular
focus remains the regeneration of Knottingley and Ferrybridge, and Pontefract town
centre, which includes proposals for Horsefair Estate, working in partnership with
Wakefield Council to develop the future Masterplans for these areas.
Significant investment in homes and estates will continue in accordance with the
strategy of the Board, to maintain its revenue generating assets at the highest
standard. The future investment programme will be informed by the outcomes of the
100% Stock Condition Survey undertaken during 2019/2020.

Delivering Customer Excellence: Creating Sustainable and
Connected Communities
Customer Satisfaction
Higher levels of satisfaction lead to secure income as a result of stable and
sustained tenancies, as well as positive recommendations to potential new
customers.
WDH’s Tenant Survey showed satisfaction with the service provided by WDH has
increased slightly to 93.6% (2018/2019: 92.3%). This performance is expected to
move to upper quartile.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

% of
respondents
very or fairly
satisfied with
the overall
service provided

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

94.7%

92.3%

93.2%

Community Benefit Society number 7530
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Customer Satisfaction (continued)
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

% of tenants
very or fairly
satisfied that
their rent is
value for money

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

87.8%

89.0%

91.8%

89.0%

86.8%

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

Median

89.9%

Tenant satisfaction that rents provide VFM increased marginally to 89.9% in
2019/2020 (2018/2019: 89%), this is expected to remain median quartile.
Insights from surveys are used to ensure overall satisfaction remains high,
particularly in the areas most important to tenants. Priority areas for improvement
from the Tenant Survey included keeping promises and commitments and making it
easier for customers to contact WDH.
For 2020/2021 priority areas for improving customer satisfaction include specific
focus on digital services, reflecting on the increasing importance of providing an
improved and expanded range of digital services to tenants.
The digital customer contact offer continues to be developed, making it easier for
those tenants who prefer to communicate and transact with WDH digitally to do so.
Enhancing online and mobile channels and supporting tenants to get online and go
digital will enable substantial improvements in productivity and customer service,
making an important contribution to improved VFM across all services.
During 2019/2020, 58.3% of contacts to WDH’s OneCALL and Homesearch services
were made digitally, exceeding the target of 50%.
Tenancy Sustainment
A broad range of services continue to be provided to support tenants to sustain their
tenancies, with increased investment in these areas to mitigate the impact of Welfare
Reform.
•

•

The Debt Team proactively help tenants remain in their own home, enabling them
to feel supported and in control of their finances, and avoiding the need for formal
legal action wherever possible.
The Tenancy Ready Team work with vulnerable applicants and tenants to help
them access and successfully maintain their tenancy, supporting them through a
range of issues from tenancy applications to accessing benefits and other
financial support.
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Tenancy Sustainment (continued)
•

Cash Wise provide invaluable assistance for customers who are struggling to
manage their money and sustain their tenancy, providing advice on household
budgeting, switching utility providers and claiming benefit or grant entitlements.

Tenancy turnover for 2019/2020 was 7.4%, showing good performance against a
target of 7.5%, but a slight deterioration on the previous years’ performance of 6.5%.
Rent collection also continues to demonstrate strong performance and is expected to
remain median performance compared to peers.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Rent collected
from current
and former
tenants as a
percentage of
rent due

Comparison to Sector Scorecard
Benchmark 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

99.7%

99.8%

100.4%

100.1%

99.5%

Median

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

99.5%

WDH’s debt collection service is also very cost effective, with the cost per property of
rent arrears and collection at £85.65.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Cost per
property of rent
arrears and
collection

£94.27

£99.84

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile
£128.27

£138.99

£160.26

Upper

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

£85.65

Efficient Lettings of Homes
Lettings management continues to demonstrate VFM with low costs of £32.35 per
property in 2019/2020. Re-let times remain fairly constant at 18 days, with
performance expected to remain within upper quartile. Void loss has reduced
slightly to 1.23% and is anticipated to remain median quartile.
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Efficient Lettings of Homes (continued)
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Comparison to HouseMark Benchmark
2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

Cost per property
of lettings

£38.82

£45.97

£69.87

£85.68

£99.71

Upper

£32.35

Average standard
re-let time in days

18.2

18

19

25.5

33.6

Upper

18

Rent loss due to
empty properties
(voids) as % of
rent due

1.28%

1.4%

0.70%

0.98%

1.53%

Median

1.23%

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

A Digital Future: Creating a Sustainable and Connected Business
Generating Efficiencies and Minimising Overhead Costs
Being a digital business and securing increased value from procurement to generate
efficiencies and cost savings across the business is key to creating sustainable
growth, to increase the operating margin and grow the social dividend reinvested for
the benefit of WDH’s tenants and communities.
During 2019/2020, WDH generated over £265k in cashable efficiencies against the
target of £250k.
Ensuring VFM through procurement of goods and services forms a key part of
WDH’s approach. The introduction of a new purchase to pay solution and an
emphasis on effective contract management across all externally delivered
contracts, has enabled WDH to manage supplier performance and ensure VFM is
maximised.
Northern Shared Services, the cost sharing entity focussing on repairs and
maintenance service provision, made a £596k contribution towards fixed costs,
slightly behind the £601k target, but a marginal increase on the previous financial
year (2018/2019: £591k). Following agreement by the Board, NSS stopped
providing repairs and maintenance services at the end of the financial year with a
number of employees transferring to Together Housing Association under TUPE
arrangements.
Discussions to create an additional joint venture, building on the success of the Joint
Venture with Wakefield Council, Bridge Homes, will be further explored during
2020/2021 onwards.
Ensuring low overhead costs is important to WDH in continuing to maintain and
improve VFM from services. Reducing these costs makes a positive contribution to
the social dividend that is reinvested for the benefit of tenants and communities.
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Generating Efficiencies and Minimising Overhead Costs (continued)
Overhead costs as a percentage of adjusted turnover remain in upper quartile, at
8.1%, but have shown a marginal increase from 2018/2019. Overhead costs have
been driven down across a number of support services, though this has been offset
by increased investment across IT and finance functions. Current 2020/2021 budget
expectations are for costs to remain at 8.1%.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

Total overhead
as % adjusted
turnover *

7.4%

7.3%

10.1%

11.1%

14.2%

Upper

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

8.1%

* The Sector Scorecard definition requires a notional adjustment for turnover related to any internal repairs and maintenance
DLO, to ensure fair comparison where any overhead costs for that DLO have also been reflected.

At £3,194 the headline social housing cost per unit 2019/2020, has reduced
marginally, largely reflective of reduction in costs arising from other social housing
activities.
Performance is anticipated to remain median quartile and reflects the Board’s
ambition to maintain its stock at the highest standard and deliver social positive
outcomes in support of the Vision.
Performance
Measure

WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Headline
Social
Housing Cost
Per Unit
RSH VFM
Metric 5

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

£2,986

£3,311

£2,883

£3,327

£3,565

Median

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

£3,194

The overall operating margin excluding the surplus from the disposal of housing
properties is 20% (2018/2019: 21.2%) and the social housing margin is 21.9%
(2018/2019: 23.4%). The performance during 2019/2020 is in line with Board
expectations. Comparative performance is expected to remain median quartile.
EBITDA MRI interest cover, which measures the surplus compared to interest
payable, shows an increase to 217.9% (2018/2019: 193.4%) largely due to reduced
spend on capitalised major repairs during the period, despite marginally higher
interest and financing costs. Performance is expected to remain median quartile.
Both the overall operating margin and EBITDA MRI interest cover performance
maintain a healthy margin for potential future development in line with the Board’s
intentions.
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Generating Efficiencies and Minimising Overhead Costs (continued)
WDH
2017/
2018

WDH
2018/
2019

Comparison to Sector Scorecard Peer
Group 2018/2019
WDH
Upper
Median
Lower
Quartile

housing)

37.0%

23.4%

31.4%

26.9%

20.8%

Median

21.9%

– excluding
disposal of
housing
properties)

31.7%

19.9%

29.6%

25.9%

15.7%

Median

19.3%

Performance
Measure
Operating
margin (social
RSH VFM
Metric 6a
Operating
margin (overall

WDH
2019/2020
Outturn

RSH VFM
Metric 6b
EBITDA MRI
Interest cover
%
254.4% 193.4%
289.0%
210.0%
166.4%
Lower
31.8%*
RSH VFM
Metric 4
*EDITDA MRI equals 217.9% if exceptional finance charges related to refinancing of £111.3m are
excluded.
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Improving Value for Money (VFM) in 2020/2021
Following a comprehensive review, the Board agreed, 21 February 2020, an updated
Vision to 2035 and 2025 Business Strategy.
The Vision ‘to create confident communities’ is supported by three five year rolling
milestones.
Revised priorities have been established to support the delivery of our 2025
Milestone - ‘Making real change through social outcomes - by working
collaboratively and inclusively to deliver services people want and need.’
The following strategic priorities aligned to our strategic objectives, will be pursued.
Strategic Objectives
To be a landlord of
choice by putting the
customer first
To be a partner of
choice to create
better places to live

Strategic Priorities
Customer Excellence: Providing high quality, value for money, tenant
shaped services.
Health Wellbeing and Support: Supporting our tenants to maintain
successful tenancies and healthy lives.
New Homes and Growth: Increasing access to high quality affordable
housing.
High Quality Homes and Neighbourhoods: Meeting the highest
standards of safety and repair and regenerating our communities.

To be a positive
force of leadership
and influence to
develop the potential
of people

Skills and Enterprise: Supporting tenants and communities to achieve
their aspirations and ambitions.

To be a wellmanaged and well
governed business

Business of the Future: Being a fit for purpose sustainable business.

Workforce of the Future: Ensuring a highly skilled, capable and resilient
workforce.

Greener Business: Being a greener business responsive to climate
change.

The Business Strategy confirms the overall business model to maximise social
dividend for reinvestment in new and existing homes and additional services to
tenants and local communities, providing added social value and creating confident
communities. Ensuring VFM through economies of scale, innovation and excellence
and creating growth and VFM through strategic partnership and joint ventures in
delivering the priorities set out in the Business Strategy is integral to the approach.
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Improving VFM in 2020/2021 (continued)
The Board has established the following high level internal performance targets for
2020/2021 aligned to the objectives.
Strategic Objective

To be a landlord of
choice by putting the
customer first

High Level Performance Indicator

Target

Housing – Current and former rent debt.

£7.4m

Programme Delivery – Gas services completed against
planned.

29,752

Programme Delivery – Validated electrical tests
completed against planned.

6,530

To be a partner of
choice to create
better places to live

Assets – Spend (ex VAT) against investment
programme.

£23.2m

Development / Growth – Spend against Programme.

£37.5m

To be a positive
force of leadership
and influence to
develop the potential
of people

Resources – Sickness absence (average days per
month).

To be a wellmanaged and well
governed business

Development / Growth – New supply delivered.

Digital Business – Server Remediation (number
remediated in year)
Finance/Viability – Operating Surplus.
Finance/Viability – Interest Cover.

326

1,134 days

63
£33.5m
110%

The executive and Board will monitor the above throughout the year, alongside a
suite of key performance measures which will ensure that the Association’s viability
and operational performance are maintained and enhanced, and VFM is secured
across all aspects of service delivery.
Further work will be undertaken during the financial year to review and enhance the
approach to VFM across the business, taking into account the requirements of the
Regulator of Social Housing’s (RSH’s) VFM Standard, in order to ensure WDH
remains strategically well placed to deliver and improve VFM across all services and
maintain its G1/V1 rating.

Community Benefit Society number 7530

44

Commercial in confidence

Wakefield and District Housing Limited

Strategic Report
Statement of Compliance
In preparing this Strategic Report and the Report of the Board, the Board has
followed the principles set out in Part 2 of the SORP updated in 2018. In accordance
with the requirements of the Accounting Direction 2019, the Board certify that it has
complied with the requirements of the RSH’s Governance and Financial Viability
Standard, maintaining a G1/V1 rating.
In accordance with the requirements of the RSH, the Board certifies that WDH has
complied with the requirement to maintain an Assets and Liabilities Register. The
Board, in making its decisions about public benefit and the achievement of its
strategic objectives has had due regard to the public benefit guidance when
exercising any powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.
The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 15 October 2020 and signed on
its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited
Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of Wakefield and District Housing Limited
(the ‘parent society’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended
31 March 2020, which comprise Consolidated and Association Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Association Statement of Changes in
Reserves, Consolidated and Association Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102; The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the Financial Statements:
•

•

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and Parent society's affairs
as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group’s and Parent society's income and
expenditure for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Housing and Regeneration Act
2008, and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social
Housing 2019.

Basis for opinion
We have been appointed as auditor under the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014 and report in accordance with regulations made under that Act.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the society in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of matter – housing property and investment property valuations
We draw attention to Note 2 of the financial statements, which describes the basis
for valuing housing properties and investment properties. Management engaged an
expert to value their property portfolio. The expert’s valuation obtained included a
‘material valuation uncertainty’ per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book
Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be
attached to management’s valuation than would normally be the case. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Community Benefit Society number 7530
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited (continued)
The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit
Our audit of the Financial Statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all
relevant uncertainties, including those arising as a consequence of the effects of
macro-economic uncertainties such as COVID-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and
challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the Directors and the related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the
Financial Statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic
environment and the Company’s future prospects and performance. COVID-19 and
Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK,
and at the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of
uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when
assessing the Company’s future prospects and performance. However, no audit
should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future
implications for a company associated with these particular events.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
•

the Boards’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
Financial Statements is not appropriate; or

•

the Board have not disclosed in the Financial Statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
12 months from the date when the Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

In our evaluation of the Boards' conclusions, we considered the risks associated with
the Parent society’s business model, including effects arising from macro-economic
uncertainties such as COVID-19 and Brexit, and analysed how those risks might
affect the Company’s and Group's financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the period of at least 12 months from the date when the Financial
Statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we have nothing
to report in these respects.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited (continued)
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent
events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were
reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material
uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Company and Group
will continue in operation.
Other information
The Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, other than the Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection
with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the Financial Statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our
opinion:
•
•
•
•

a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained; or
the Parent society has not kept proper accounting records;
the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board for the Financial Statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board set out
on page 21, the Board is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial
Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and Parent society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the Group or Parent society or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Community Benefit Society number 7530
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Wakefield and
District Housing Limited (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the society's members, as a body, in accordance with
regulations made under Sections 87 and 98(7) of the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the society's members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the society and the
society's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Turnover
Operating expenditure
Operating costs
Impairment loss
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fair value movement of investment property
Operating surplus
Share of operating surplus in joint venture
Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and financing costs before exceptional
charges
Exceptional finance charge

Note

31 March
2020
£’000

31 March
2019
£’000

3

158,491

155,561

3
3
6
15

(127,322)
(290)
2,129
(1,288)

(124,497)
(184)
2,732
(600)

3

31,720

33,012

17
7
8

379
515
(19,041)

51
411
(18,582)

8

(111,370)

-

(97,797)

14,892

(Loss) / surplus before taxation
Taxation

11

(Loss) / surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing properties
Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes

12
9

Total comprehensive income

(141)

(52)

(97,938)

14,840

53,337
(8,946)

20,895
(8,720)

(53,547)

27,015

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on
15 October 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Graham Stokes
Board Member

Martin Warhurst
Secretary

The consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530
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Association Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Note

31 March
2020
£’000

31 March
2019
£’000

3

158,401

155,551

3
3
6
15

(127,232)
(290)
2,129
(1,288)

(124,487)
(184)
2,732
(600)

Operating surplus

3

31,720

33,012

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and financing costs before exceptional
charges
Exceptional finance charge

7
8

515
(19,041)

411
(18,582)

8

(111,370)

-

(98,176)

14,841

Turnover
Operating expenditure
Operating costs
Impairment loss
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fair value movement of investment property

(Loss) / surplus before taxation
Taxation

11

(Loss) / surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing properties
Actuarial loss in respect of pension schemes

12
9

Total comprehensive income

(141)

(52)

(98,317)

14,789

53,337
(8,946)

20,895
(8,720)

(53,926)

26,964

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on
15 October 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Graham Stokes
Board Member

Martin Warhurst
Secretary

The Association’s results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

170,770

150,612

321,382

Surplus for the year

14,840

-

14,840

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension
scheme

(8,720)

-

(8,720)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

-

20,895

20,895

(8,720)

20,895

12,175

1,531

(1,531)

-

178,421

169,976

348,397

(97,938)

-

(97,938)

(8,946)

-

(8,946)

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to
income and expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2019
Loss for the year
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension
scheme
Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

-

53,337

53,337

(8,946)

53,337

44,391

3,996

(3,996)

-

75,533

219,317

294,850

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to
income and expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2020

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530
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Association Statement of Changes In Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Income and
expenditure
reserve
£’000

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

170,279

150,612

320,891

Surplus for the year

14,789

-

14,789

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension
scheme

(8,720)

-

(8,720)

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties

-

20,895

20,895

(8,720)

20,895

12,175

1,531

(1,531)

-

Balance at 31 March 2019

177,879

169,976

347,855

Surplus for the year

(98,317)

-

(98,317)

(8,946)

-

(8,946)

Other comprehensive income
Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to
income and expenditure reserve

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension
scheme
Unrealised gain on revaluation of housing
properties
Other comprehensive income

-

53,337

53,337

(8,946)

53,337

44,391

3,996

(3,996)

-

74,612

219,317

293,929

Reserves transfers:
Transfer from revaluation reserve to
income and expenditure reserve
Balance at 31 March 2020

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2020

Note

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

12
13
14
15
16
17

776,702
16,067
7,054
10,600
129
4,421

708,558
15,204
5,703
11,850
147
4,042

814,973

745,504

4,729
7,507
98,290

4,625
10,853
87,572

110,526

103,050

(21,749)
(528,670)

(17,146)
(2,200)

Net current (liabilities) / assets

(439,893)

83,704

Total assets less current liabilities

375,080

829,208

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets - housing properties
Tangible fixed assets - other
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Homebuy loans receivable
Investment in joint venture
Current assets
Properties held for sale
Trade and other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

18
19

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Loans: Amounts falling due within one year

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
Defined benefit pension liability

20
20

21

(752)

(417,952)

9

(79,478)

(62,859)

294,850

348,397

75,533

178,421

219,317

169,976

294,850

348,397

-

-

294,850

348,397

Total net assets
Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
Revaluation reserve
Total reserves
Amounts attributable to minority interests

17

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on
15 October 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Graham Stokes
Board Member

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530

Martin Warhurst
Secretary
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Association Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2020
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets - housing properties
Tangible fixed assets - other
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Homebuy loans receivable
Investment in joint venture
Current assets
Properties held for sale
Trade and other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

12
13
14
15
16
17

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

776,702
16,067
7,054
10,600
129
3,500

708,558
15,204
5,703
11,850
147
3,500

814,052

744,962

4,729
8,504
97,269

4,625
11,407
86,883

110,502

102,915

18
19

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Loans: Amounts falling due within one year

(21,725)
(528,670)

(17,011)
(2,200)

Net current (liabilities) / assets

(439,893)

83,704

Total assets less current liabilities

374,159

828,666

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
Defined benefit pension liability

20
20

21

(752)

(417,952)

9

(79,478)

(62,859)

Total net assets

293,929

347,855

Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
Revaluation reserve

74,612
219,317

177,879
169,976

Total reserves

293,929

347,855

The Financial Statements were issued and approved by the Board on
15 October 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Green
Chair

Graham Stokes
Board Member

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530

Martin Warhurst
Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

31 March
2020
£’000

31 March
2019
£’000

65,224

58,355

(43,517)
(1,655)
(2,957)
(82)
8,876
4,035
515
(34,785)

(48,030)
(1,042)
(3,818)
(499)
7,640
3,818
411
(750)
(42,270)

(17,539)
(2,200)
18
(19,721)

(17,540)
10,000
(1,100)
6
(8,634)

10,718

7,451

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

87,572

80,121

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

98,290

87,572

Net cash generated from operating activities

27

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and refurbishment of tangible fixed assets housing properties
Purchase of tangible fixed assets - other
Purchase of intangible assets
Additions to investment properties
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Grant received
Interest received
Investment in joint venture
Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Loan drawdown
Repayment of borrowings
Homebuy loans received
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

27

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form part of these Financial Statements
Community Benefits Society number 7530
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

Legal Status

Wakefield and District Housing Limited (WDH) is a registered provider of social
housing registered under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act
2014, with a registration number 7530, and is an exempt charity.
WDH Solutions Limited (WDHS) is a wholly owned trading subsidiary of WDH and is
incorporated in England under the Companies Act 2006 as a Private Limited
Company limited by guarantee. The main activity of WDHS is to carry out
commercial activities.
Northern Shared Services Limited (NSS) is a subsidiary company incorporated in
England under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company limited by shares.
WDH holds a 51% share; Together Housing Association holds 40%; Arches Housing
Association holds 1%, and 8% of the shares are unallocated. The Company has
been established to provide repairs and maintenance, void repairs and gas
maintenance services to its members.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) incorporated in
England under the Companies Act 2006. WDH and Wakefield Council incorporated
the joint venture, Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP. WDH has a 50% interest and
Wakefield Council has a 50% interest. The joint venture has been established to
build homes for sale.
The registered office of WDH and its subsidiary and joint venture undertakings is
Merefield House, Whistler Drive, Castleford, West Yorkshire, WF10 5HX.

2.

Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Association are prepared following the
historical cost convention, amended for valuation of housing properties, and in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102), the Housing SORP 2018: Statement of
Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers and complies with the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019. There
were no material departures from that standard.
The Financial Statements are presented in Sterling (£’000) which is also the
functional currency.
The individual accounts of the Association have adopted the following disclosure
exemptions:
•
•

the requirement to present a statement of cash flows and related notes;
financial instrument disclosures, including:
- categories of financial instruments; and
- items of income, expenses, gains or losses relating to financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Going Concern
In the year WDH are reporting a loss of £97.9m this loss is due to the refinancing
transaction that was completed post year end, but WDH had served a prepayment
notice pre-year end. Under FRS 102, the Board are required to estimate any
changes in expected cash flows arising on basic financial liabilities held at amortised
cost at the effective interest rate, as a result £111.4m was recognised in Statement
of Comprehensive Income, £80m of this is a non cash movement. A prepayment
notice was served to the syndicate on 12 February all loans became repayable
within one year. As a result WDH recognised a current liability position of £440m.
The Group has strong positive operational cash flows with £98m of cash reserves as
at the 31 March 2020. WDH retained its G1/V1 rating for Governance and Financial
Viability from the Regulator of Social Housing during 2019/2020.
Post year end, WDH finalised the refinancing of the Association’s loan facilities,
during April 2020. The existing facility was replaced with new bi-lateral funding
arrangements of £520m, of which £400m of the total facility is currently drawn, as at
September 2020, with the Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander and The Housing
Finance Corporation, which has increased the undrawn facilities from the year end
position. WDH’s income which is generated from the provision of social housing has
not been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.
This increased capacity provides adequate resources with which to finance
committed investment and development programmes, as well as supporting the
Group’s day to day operations and respond to the challenges presented by the
COVID-19 Pandemic.
Detailed and challenging stress testing and sensitivity analysis under a rigorous suite
of increasing onerous scenarios are used to test the business plan annually, which
included mitigating actions. The Business Plan demonstrates that WDH is able to
service debt facilities whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants and is fully
compliant with the requirements of the Financial Forecast Return (FFR) review
carried out annually by the Regulator of Social Housing, which allows the regulator to
review the ability of social housing providers to meet the requirements of the
Governance and Financial Viability Standard and provides regulatory oversight of
WDH’s Business Plan.
After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
being a period of at least 12 months after the date on which the Report and Financial
Statements are signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the e basis for the
Financial Statements.
Public Benefit Entity
WDH is a public benefit entity in accordance with FRS 102. The Board, in making
their decisions about public benefit and what has been done to achieve the entity’s
purpose, have had due regard to the public benefit guidance when exercising any
powers or duties to which the guidance is relevant.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant Management Judgements and Estimates
The preparation of the Financial Statements requires management to make
significant judgements and estimates. The items in the Financial Statements where
these judgements and estimates have been made are as follows:
Significant Management Judgements
The following are significant management judgements made in applying the
accounting policies of the Group that have the most significance on the Financial
Statements.
Impairment
WDH have considered potential indicators of impairment such as properties
earmarked for demolition. As a result, WDH estimated the recoverable amount of
certain housing properties as follows:
•

Determined the level at which recoverable amount is assessed.

•

Estimated the recoverable amount.

•

Calculated the carrying amount of the asset.

•

Compared the carrying amount to the recoverable amount to determine if an
impairment loss has occurred.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the assets value in use and fair value less
costs to sell. The impairment loss recognised in the year is shown in note 12.
Capitalisation of Property Development Costs
Capitalisation of development costs requires the exercise of judgement. After
capitalisation, management monitor the asset and considers whether changes
indicate that an impairment provision is required. The total amount capitalised in the
year is shown in note 12.
Capitalisation of Property Improvement Costs
Capitalisation of improvement costs requires the exercise of judgement in the
allocation of those costs to be capitalised and those to be expensed. During
improvement, work in progress is apportioned based on estimations derived from
past experience of similar schemes. On receipt of the Final Account, an analysis of
costs, on an individual component basis, determines the actual allocation of costs as
being capital or revenue expenditure.
Categorisation of Properties as Investment Properties
The use of the asset has been considered by management when classifying assets
as investment properties or property, plant and equipment. Assets classified as
investment properties are shown in note 15. Assets classified as property, plant and
equipment are shown in note 13.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Classification of Loans as Basic
WDH has a significant portfolio of fixed rate loans, all of which have both the break
gain and a broadly “symmetrical” clause in relation to break costs which may arise if
a decision is made by the Board for an early repayment of the loan. The fixed rate
loans are all embedded and there are no provisions whereby the fixed rate can be
separated from the loan.
In a prepayment scenario with a break gain, the loan agreement provides for
repayment of the capital at par. Any break gain payable by a lender would be in
relation to future interest periods only. Therefore, whilst it is possible that a lender
could suffer a loss, the loss would not be attributable to either the current or prior
periods.
Management has considered the terms of the loan agreement and concluded that all
loans meet the classification of basic financial instruments.
Accounting for refinancing transaction
At the year end, the Group had a syndicated loan arrangement of £500m, of which
£417.3m was drawn at the March 2020. These were provided by Royal Bank of
Scotland, Santander and the European Investment Bank (EIB). The drawn loans
were a mixture of fixed and floating rate debt. Under the terms of the loan, a
prepayment clause could require break costs to be payable to the lender in an early
repayment situation. WDH served notice to the syndicate to prepay the loans on the
12 February 2020 and indemnities were agreed on 25 and 26 February 2020, as a
result the bank debt is presented as due in less than one year at the balance sheet
date.
Following the year end, this existing facility was replaced with new bi-lateral funding
arrangement of £520m of which £400m of the total facility is currently drawn as at
September 2020 with the Royal Bank of Scotland, Santander and The Housing
Finance Corporation. Further details of the post year end refinancing have been
included in note 33 of the financial statements.
Under FRS 102, the Board are required to estimate any changes in expected cash
flows arising on basic financial liabilities held at amortised cost at the effective
interest rate. As a result, the Board have considered whether under the terms of the
contractual cash flows at the year end, any changes should be made. In determining
this estimate, the Board have considered the significance of the refinancing event
post year end and whether this could be considered a substantial modification
resulting in a derecognition of the loan post year end.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting for refinancing transaction Continued
The Board have considered both quantitative and qualitative factors in the loan
arrangements and concluded that a derecognition event had occurred for all loan
facilities. This is a key judgement applied in the accounting treatment at the year end
and could be subjective depending on which factors are considered to be most
relevant. The conclusion that a derecognition event has occurred for all loans means
that the estimated cashflows have been revised to reflect the estimated impact of the
prepayment clause within the loan agreement. This has resulted in an exceptional
finance charge of £111.4m being recognised at the year end, as detailed in note 8 of
the financial statements. Of which, the Association made payments of £31m in April
2020 to EIB when the refinancing completed. The remaining £80m, will be
considered as part of the accounting for the refinancing transactions that will be
presented in full in the 31 March 2021 financial statements.
Valuation of Housing Properties
Management reviews its valuation of housing properties at each reporting date,
based on a formal valuation report. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to the
discount rate, the cost of property maintenance and future cash flows. However, the
valuation is carried out by professional external valuers, Savills. Future maintenance
spend is dictated by the most recent stock condition survey.
Due to the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), declared by the World Health
Organisation as a “Global Pandemic “on the 11 March 2020 and it associated impact
on global financial markets and economies, WDH’s annual property valuation as
issued by Savills is reported on the basis of “material valuation uncertainty” as per
VPS3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book global for both the Existing Use Value for
Social housing (EUV-SH) and Market Value (MV) properties; which implies less
certainty and higher degree of caution should be attached to the valuation than
normally would be the case.
Since the middle of March 2020, all valuation reports have been issued subject to
the Material Uncertainty Clause (MUC), this has been applied across all asset
classes in both commercial and residential property in line with the basis of the RICS
guidance. Market activity has been closely monitored during this time for investor
sentiment and activity levels as property portfolios have come to market. Although
registered providers have reported some impact on rent collection, the mitigation
measures evident in the sector appear sufficient to address any loss of income and
increase in risk.
As a result of the stable market conditions since the year end, Savills no longer
consider that there is a material uncertainty when valuing on the basis of EUV-SH
and the RICS Material Uncertainty Leaders’ Forum have agreed that the MUC be
lifted with effect from 26 May 2020. No MUC clauses are being used in EUV-SH
valuation reports issued after this date.
WDH has not received a revised valuation report since 31 March 2020 and the
clauses were in effect as at the reporting date.
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Valuation of Investment Properties
Investment properties comprise of shops and garages held for letting. Investment
properties were valued at 31 March 2020 at market value. The Group’s investment
properties have been valued by Savills (UK) Limited, a general practice firm
providing surveying and valuation services. The latest valuation was performed on
31 March 2020.
The independent expert’s valuation obtained included a ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently,
less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to the valuation of
investment properties than would normally be the case. WDH have considered the
material valuation uncertainty and are comfortable that this uncertainty is temporary
and investment property valuations are recoverable in the long term, and while less
certainty and a higher degree of caution needs to be attached to the valuation, the
valuation can still be relied on. WDH therefore consider the valuation included in the
independent expert’s report to be an accurate reflection of the investment property
fair value.
Useful Lives of Depreciable Assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected use of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to changes to internal or external standards which may require more
frequent replacement of key components of housing property. Accumulated
depreciation at 31 March 2020 is shown in notes 12 and 13.
Defined Benefit Pension Obligation (DBPO)
Management’s estimate of the DBPO is based on a number of critical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may
significantly impact the DBPO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses (as
analysed in note 9). The valuation is carried out by external professional actuaries,
Aon Hewitt. The liability at 31 March 2020 was £79.5m.
Recoverability of Debtors – Bad Debt Provision
Management estimates the recoverability of debtors on a line by line basis based on
past experience. Payment plans in place and the level of housing benefit are also
taken into consideration when assessing the level of the provision. The actual
recoverability of the debtor may differ from the estimate made.
Basis of Consolidation
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 102. The Group accounts consolidate the results of WDH and
all its subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 using acquisition accounting. The Group
accounts also include its joint venture using the gross equity method. Transactions
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Investment in Subsidiaries
The consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the entities controlled by the
Group, these are WDHS and NSS. Control is achieved where the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits
from its activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the accounts
of the Association. The investment in WDHS is £nil and in NSS is £51.
Consistent accounting policies are applied across the Group.
Investment in Joint Venture
The joint venture has been accounted for in the consolidated Financial Statements
using the gross equity method. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted in
each year by the Association’s share of the results of the joint venture less the
Association's share of any relevant gains or losses, and any other changes in the
joint venture’s net assets including distributions to its owners. The Association’s
share of the joint venture’s results is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. In the Association, the investment has been recognised at
cost.
Turnover
Turnover comprises of rental income receivable in the year; service charges; income
from shared ownership first tranche sales; other services included at invoiced values
(excluding VAT where recoverable) of goods and services supplied in the year;
revenue grants receivable in the year and capital grants.
Revenue Recognition
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development
reach practical completion or otherwise become available for letting, net of any
voids.
The Group adopts a fixed method for calculating and charging service charges to its
tenants and a variable method for leaseholders. Income is recognised based on the
amounts chargeable. Expenditure is recorded when a service is provided.
Income from first tranche sales is recognised at the point of legal completion of the
sale. Revenue grants are receivable when the conditions for receipt of grant funding
have been met. Capital grants are recognised as revenue on completion of the
property. Charges for support services funded under Housing Support are
recognised as they fall due under the contractual arrangements with the
Administering Authority.
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Taxation
WDH is a charitable Association and therefore is not subject to corporation tax on
surpluses derived from charitable activities.
Any surplus on non-charitable activities is taxed.
WDHS is subject to corporation tax. WDHS gift aids any profits to WDH and there is
no residual profit for NSS, as it is a cost sharing entity.
Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Group is registered for Value Added Tax (VAT). The Group charges VAT on some
of its income and can recover part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The Financial
Statements include VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and not
recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs. The balance of VAT payable or
recoverable at the year end is included as a current liability or asset.
In respect of major refurbishment expenditure works undertaken there is a VAT Shelter
Agreement, approved by HMRC, against which WDH is able to recover the VAT
incurred on qualifying first time expenditure. Under the VAT Shelter agreement, a
proportion of the receipts from HMRC is payable to Wakefield Council as part of the
Transfer Agreement. VAT recoverable under the VAT Shelter and retained by the
Association is treated as a windfall receipt annually and credited against revenue
expenditure. Any amounts due from HMRC under the VAT Shelter Agreement are
shown as other debtors and any amounts payable to Wakefield Council are shown as
creditors.
HMRC has approved the implementation of a Special Method Partial Exemption
Scheme from the date of transfer.
Interest Payable
Interest payable is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
current year. Interest is not capitalised on borrowings to finance the Improvement
and New Build Programmes.
Homebuy Loans
Loans of up to 15% of the purchase price have been provided to individuals to assist
in purchasing a WDH property built for outright sale. The loan is a secured loan and
is due to be repaid after five years after which interest will be charged on any
outstanding loan balance. WDH does not receive any Homebuy grant directly.
WDH have provided a loan secured against equity to tenants allowing them to buy into
the improvement programme. Loans are provided up to the value of works required.
Homebuy loans are treated as public benefit entity concessionary loans. They are
initially recognised as a loan at the amount paid to the purchaser and are
subsequently updated to reflect accrued interest.
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Financial Instruments
The Group only holds basic financial instruments that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other debtors, trade and other
creditors and loans from banks.
Financial instruments, that are financing transactions, which meet the criteria of a
basic financial instrument as defined in Section 11 of FRS102 are accounted for
under an amortised cost model. The effective interest rate method, which applies
the interest rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows to the carrying
amount of the financial instrument at initial recognition, has been used to calculate
amortised cost. Any related fees and transaction costs are also amortised using this
method.
In line with Section 11 of FRS 102, where there are changes in the estimated
cashflows, the carrying value is adjusted to reflect the revised carrying amount of the
present value, of the estimated future cash flows at the original effective interest rate.
The difference between the revised carrying amount of the debt instrument and the
previous carrying amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Loan modifications are assessed on a case by case basis and where modifications
are deemed to be substantial the instrument is derecognised. Where modifications
are considered to be non-substantial they are accounted for in accordance with
Section 11 of FRS102.
Other financial liabilities that are payable or receivable within one year, typically
trade creditors and trade debtors (other than those on payment arrangements), are
measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or
other consideration, expected to be paid or received.
Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the
end of each financial year for objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence
of impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between
an asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted
at the asset's original effective interest rate.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position, where there is an enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment.
Where debtors are on payment plans, the balance is shown at its present value,
discounted at a market rate, obtainable by the tenants.
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Creditors
Short term trade creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial
liabilities, including bank loans, are measured at amortised cost.
Pensions
WDH participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), a defined
benefit scheme. The LGPS is a multi-employer scheme with more than one
participating employer. The scheme is administered by the West Yorkshire Pension
Fund (WYPF) under the regulations governing the LGPS. Triennial actuarial
valuations of the pension scheme are performed by an independent, professionally
qualified actuary, using the projected unit method.
For the WYPF, scheme assets are measured at fair value. Scheme liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are
discounted at appropriate high quality corporate bond rates. The net surplus or
deficit is presented separately from other net assets in the Statement of Financial
Position. A net surplus would be recognised only to the extent that it is recoverable
by the Group through reduced contributions or through refunds from the plan.
The current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments are charged
against the operating surplus. Past service costs are recognised in the current
reporting year. Net interest costs are calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as a finance cost. Re-measurements are reported in Other Comprehensive
Income. Refer to note 9 for more details.
Housing Properties
Housing properties are properties held for the provision of social housing or to
otherwise provide social benefit. Housing properties are principally available for rent
and properties are stated at valuation.
Completed housing properties are stated at fair value (EUV-SH) at the date of
valuation, less subsequent accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment
loss. Revaluation of the properties is undertaken every year.
WDH has an investment programme to improve the condition of its housing stock.
Improvements are works which result in an increase in the net income, such as an
increase in rental income, a reduction in future maintenance costs, or results in a
significant extension of the useful economic life of the property in the business.
Housing properties undergoing major refurbishment are included in the valuation.
Housing properties under construction are stated at cost. The cost includes
acquiring the land and buildings and property development.
Salary costs of employees directly attributable to developing new build schemes
have been capitalised based on the time spent on each scheme.
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Housing Properties (continued)
Works to existing properties that replace a component that has been treated
separately for depreciation purposes, along with those works that result in an
increase in net rental income over the lives of the properties thereby enhancing the
economic benefits of the assets, are capitalised as improvements.
Shared ownership properties are split proportionally between current and fixed
assets based on the element relating to expected first tranche sales. The first
tranche proportion is classed as a current asset. Related sales proceeds are
included in turnover, and the remaining element is classed as a fixed asset and
included in housing properties at valuation, less any provisions needed for
depreciation or impairment.
Commuted Sum Properties
WDH has an agreement with the local authority to purchase properties at market
value, subject to the receipt of a contribution from the local authority. These
properties are classified as social housing properties as they are available to rent at
social rent. Commuted sum properties are held at valuation and revalued every
year. The contribution received from Wakefield Council for commuted sum
properties is treated as capital grant, accounted for using the performance model
and recognised as income when the performance conditions are met. In this case
the grant is recognised as income on completion of the property.
Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held
for social benefit or for use in the business. Investment properties are measured at
cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value as at the year end, with
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Government Grants
Government grants include grants receivable from the Regulator of Social Housing,
local authorities, and other government organisations. A grant which does not
impose specified future performance conditions is recognised as revenue when the
grant proceeds are received or receivable.
A grant that imposes specified future performance related conditions on the Group is
recognised only when these conditions are met. A grant received before the
revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability. For Social
Housing Grant this means that grant is recognised as revenue on completion of the
property.
Grant due from government organisations or received in advance is included as
current assets or liabilities.
Government grants received for housing properties are subordinated to the
repayment of loans by agreement with the Regulator of Social Housing. On the sale
of a property the grant may be repayable. However, it is normally available to be
recycled and credited to a Recycled Capital Grant Fund and included in the
Statement of Financial Position in creditors.
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Other Grants
As with government grants, grants received from non-government sources are
recognised using the performance model. A grant which does not impose specified
future performance conditions is recognised as revenue when the grant proceeds
are received or receivable. A grant that imposes specified future performance
related conditions is recognised only when these conditions are met. A grant
received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a
liability.
Depreciation of Housing Properties
The Group separately identifies the major components of its housing properties held
for letting, and charges depreciation, so as to write down the cost of each component
to its estimated residual value, on a straight line basis, over its estimated useful
economic life.
The Group depreciates the major components of its freehold and leasehold housing
properties at the following annual rates:
Structure
Roofs
Flat roofs
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Windows and doors
Heating
Electrical
Lifts

Existing Properties
50 years
50 years
30 years
20 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years

New Build
100 years
70 years
30 years
20 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years
30 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
The retained proportion of shared ownership properties and properties held as
intermediate rent are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the property as a
complete unit in line with the rates above.
Schemes Under Construction
Schemes under construction relate to new build properties that are not yet complete
and are not depreciated.
Impairment
Existing housing properties are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Other
fixed assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that impairment may
have occurred. Where there is evidence of impairment, fixed assets are written
down to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
assets value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Any such write down is charged
to operating surplus unless it is a reversal of a past revaluation surplus, in which
case it is taken to the revaluation reserve.
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Properties for Sale
Properties developed for shared ownership first tranche sales are included in current
assets as they are intended to be sold. The split between housing properties and
properties for sale is determined by the percentage of the property to be sold under a
first tranche disposal. Shared ownership first tranche sales are initially valued at
cost, which comprises of materials, direct labour, and direct development overheads,
then subsequently at cost less any impairment.
Other Tangible Fixed Assets
Other tangible fixed assets are measured at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of other tangible fixed
assets to write them down to their estimated residual values over their expected
useful life. No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
The principal annual rates used for other assets are:
Plant and equipment racking
Plant and equipment
Computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Solar Panels
Freehold buildings

4 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
10 years
20 years
50 years

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of other tangible fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and are recognised as part of the surplus or deficit for the year.
Intangible Assets: Software Development Costs
WDH continues to develop its operating software which is used to support the
Group’s activities and as a management tool for monitoring and evaluating
performance. Design and content development costs are capitalised to the extent
that they deliver demonstrable benefits to the Group and are amortised over five
years. Ongoing costs of maintaining and operating the software are charged as
other operating costs as incurred.
Impairment of intangible assets beyond the residual value is written off to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Intangible assets are amortised over five
years.
Leased Assets
All the Group’s lease obligations are operating leases. Rentals paid under operating
leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives (such as a rent free period) is recognised
as a reduction to the expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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Holiday Pay Accrual
The Group recognises a provision for annual leave accrued by employees, as a
result of services rendered in the current year, and which employees are entitled to
carry forward and use by the end of April, unless there are exceptional
circumstances preventing them from doing so. The provision is measured at salary
costs payable for the period of absence.
Cyclical Maintenance
The cost of cyclical maintenance and internal decorations is taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income when the work is performed.
Revaluation Reserve
When housing properties are revalued, the difference between the revaluation
amount and the carrying value of the land and structure elements of housing
properties is credited to the housing property revaluation reserve.
Depreciation of revalued properties is calculated at each year end. The difference
between historical cost depreciation and the valuation depreciation is transferred
between the revaluation reserve and the income and expenditure reserve. This is
shown within the Statement of Changes in Reserves.
On disposal or impairment of properties the difference between the historical cost
and the valuation of the properties is transferred between the revaluation and the
income and expenditure reserve. This is shown within the Statement of Changes in
Reserves.
Disposal Proceeds Fund
The Disposal Proceeds Fund is a fund used to recycle the proceeds of sale under
‘RTA’ procedures. From 7 April 2017, under the Housing and Planning Act 2016,
additions to the fund have been abolished. However, balances accrued to this date
must be used in accordance with Disposal Proceeds Fund requirements until at the
latest, 6 April 2020. Due to delays in schemes starting on site WDH has received
authorisation to roll DPF balances into 2020/2021.
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Group – continuing activities
Year ended 31 March 2020

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs not
capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social
housing
Fair value movement of
investment properties

Operating
Costs
£’000

Turnover
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

138,719

-

-

(108,278)

30,441

286

-

-

(286)

-

10,398

-

(10,137)

-

261

5,302

2,129
-

-

(1,596)
(3,536)

(1,596)
2,129
1,766

15,986

2,129

(10,137)

(5,418)

2,560

3,786

-

-

(3,779)

7

-

-

-

(1,288)

(1,288)

158,491

2,129

(10,137)

(118,763)

31,720

Year ended 31 March 2019

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs not
capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social
housing
Fair value movement of
investment properties

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000

Other
Income
£’000

Operating
Costs
£’000

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000

Turnover
£’000

Other
Income
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

137,736

-

-

(105,550)

32,186

269

-

-

(269)

-

7,797

-

(7,530)

-

267

4,901

2,732
-

-

(1,578)
(4,919)

(1,578)
2,732
(18)

12,967

2,732

(7,530)

(6,766)

1,403

4,858

-

-

(4,835)

23

-

-

-

(600)

(600)

155,561

2,732

(7,530)

(117,751)

33,012

* Other income and operating costs relate mainly to the activities through Northern Shared Services Limited, the cost sharing
entity.
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Association – continuing activities
Year ended 31 March 2020

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs not
capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social
housing
Fair value movement of
revaluation of investment
properties

Operating
Costs
£’000

Turnover
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

138,719

-

-

(108,278)

30,441

286

-

-

(286)

-

10,398

-

(10,137)

-

261

5,212
15,896

2,129
2,129

(10,137)

(1,596)
(3,446)
(5,328)

(1,596)
2,129
1,766
2,560

3,786

-

-

(3,779)

7

-

-

-

(1,288)

(1,288)

158,401

2,129

(10,137)

(118,673)

31,720

Year ended 31 March 2019

Social housing lettings
Other social housing
activities
Supporting people
First tranche low cost home
ownership sales
Development costs not
capitalised
Gain on disposal of assets
Other*

Activities other than social
housing
Fair value movement of
investment properties

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000

Other
Income
£’000

Operating
Costs
£’000

Operating
surplus /
(deficit)
£’000

Turnover
£’000

Other
Income
£’000

Cost of
Sales
£’000

137,736

-

-

(105,550)

32,186

269

-

-

(269)

-

7,797

-

(7,530)

-

267

4,891

2,732
-

-

(1,578)
(4,909)

(1,578)
2,732
(18)

12,957

2,732

(7,530)

(6,756)

1,403

4,858

-

-

(4,835)

23

-

-

-

(600)

(600)

155,551

2,732

(7,530)

(117,741)

33,012

* Other income and operating costs relate mainly to activities through Northern Shared Services Limited, the cost sharing
entity.
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Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings
Group and Association

General
Needs
Housing
£’000
Turnover from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of
identifiable service
charges
124,007
Service charge income
1,157
Government grants taken
to income
1,790
Turnover from social
housing lettings
Management
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Impairment of housing
properties
Depreciation of housing
properties
Deprecation of other fixed
assets
Operating expenditure
on social housing
lettings
Operating surplus on
social housing lettings

Void losses

126,954

Supported
Housing
And
Housing
For
Older
People
£’000

Low Cost
Home
Ownership
£’000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

5,304
3,737

948
14

130,259
4,908

130,846
3,701

1,145

617

3,552

3,189

10,186

1,579

138,719

137,736

(38,301)
(1,600)
(17,665)
(2,472)
(14,745)
(680)
-

(3,159)
(3,890)
(508)
(27)
(236)
(56)
(290)

(220)
(7)
(59)
(7)
(8)
-

(41,680)
(5,497)
(18,232)
(2,506)
(14,981)
(744)
(290)

(41,540)
(4,823)
(17,626)
(2,462)
(12,846)
(1,320)
(184)

(20,903)

(1,225)

(173)

(22,301)

(23,618)

(1,872)

(154)

(21)

(2,047)

(1,131)

(98,238)

(9,545)

(495)

(108,278)

(105,550)

28,716

641

1,084

30,441

32,186

1,626

422

2

2,050

2,364

73

Commercial in confidence

Wakefield and District Housing Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
4.

Accommodation in Management and Development
Group and Association
At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of
accommodation was as follows:

Social housing
General needs housing
Social rent
Affordable rent
Supported housing and housing for older people
Low cost home ownership

2020
No.

2019
No.

27,505
1,839
1,691
597

27,600
1,664
1,676
492

Total owned

31,632

31,432

7

7

31,639

31,439

492

586

Accommodation managed for others
Total accommodation
Accommodation in development at the year end

WDH manages four Alms Houses for Wrays Homes (2019: 4 units), a registered
charity; and three properties for the Megson Trust (2019: 3 units).
During the year WDH serviced 13,173 premises through the NSS cost sharing
group: of these, 12,041 were serviced for Together Housing Association and
1,132 for Arches Housing.
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Operating Surplus
This is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation of housing
properties
Depreciation and amortisation
of other tangible fixed assets
Impairment of housing
properties
Operating lease rentals:
• Land and buildings
• Office equipment and
computers
• Motor vehicles

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

22,301

23,618

22,301

23,618

2,048

1,131

2,048

1,131

290

184

290

184

594

624

594

624

29
1,811

50
1,823

29
1,811

50
1,823

103

38

103

38

7
110

10
48

103

38

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
11
5
19

1
3
3
9

1
11
5
19

1
3
2
8

74

78

74

78

Audit Fees
Fees payable (excluding VAT)
to the Group’s auditor for the
audit of the
Financial Statements of:
• Association
• Subsidiaries and joint
venture
Fees Payable to the Group’s
auditor in respect of:
• RTB certification
• Loan covenant work
• VAT sharing agreement
work
• Other audit services
• Tax compliance services
Internal auditor’s
remuneration

The increase in audit fees is due to additional audit work required for the
refinancing, going concern and housing properties valuation.
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Sale of Fixed Assets
Group and Association

7.

Disposal proceeds – housing properties
Carrying value of fixed assets at valuation

2020
£’000
8,823
(6,119)

2019
£’000
7,555
(5,093)

Capital grant recycled (note 22)
Surplus on sale of housing properties
(Deficit) / surplus on sale of other assets
Surplus on sale of fixed assets

2,704
(235)
2,469
(340)
2,129

3,044
(347)
2,697
35
2,732

2020
£’000
18
497

2019
£’000
44
367

515

411

Interest Receivable and Other Income
Group and Association
Unwinding of discount for fair value of debtors
Interest receivable

8.

Interest Payable and Similar Charges
Group and Association
Defined benefit pension charge
Loan interest
Interest on recycled capital grant fund

2020
£’000
1,502
17,539
-

2019
£’000
1,041
17,540
1

19,041

18,582

111,370

-

Exceptional finance charge
Expected change in cash flow at effective interest rate

The refinancing completed post year end on 16 April 2020, FRS 102 requires
the debt instrument and resulting amortised cost to be recalculated to reflect
changes in expected cash flows. WDH served notice to the syndicate to
prepay the loans on the 12 February 2020. The new carrying amount is the
present value of the revised estimate of future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The difference between the revised carrying
amount of the debt instrument and the previous carrying amount is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The prepayment of the loans recognised is
£111.4m.
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Employees
Average monthly number of employees expressed based on 37 hours a
week in full time equivalents:
Group and Association

2020
No

2019
No

508
552
202

397
604
279

1,262

1,281

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

40,512
3,847
5,548

40,417
3,816
5,498

49,907

49,731

Administration
Technical services
Housing, support and care

Employee costs:
Group and Association

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

The full time equivalent number of employees who received
remuneration (including Executive Directors):
2020
No.
£60,001 to £70,000
1
£70,001 to £80,000
2
£80,001 to £90,000
3
£90,001 to £100,000
4
£100,001 to £110,000
1
£110,001 to £120,000
2
£120,001 to £130,000
1
£130,001 to £140,000
£160,001 to £170,000
1
£170,001 to £180,000
-

2019
No.
3
6
6
1
1
1
1
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Employees (continued)
West Yorkshire Pension Fund
WDH’s employees are entitled to be members of the LGPS.
The LGPS is a multi-employer scheme with more than one participating
employer. The scheme is administered by the WYPF under the regulations
governing the LGPS. It is a defined benefit scheme. Triennial and FRS 102
actuarial valuations of the pension scheme are performed by an independent,
professionally qualified actuary.
The market value of WDH’s share of the schemes assets at the
31 March 2020 was £260.59m against scheme liabilities of £340.07m, a deficit
of £79.48m.
The most recent triennial actuarial valuation was completed as at
31 March 2019 and rolled forward allowing for different financial assumptions
required under FRS 102, to 31 March 2020. The next triennial valuation will
be undertaken as at 31 March 2022.
The result of the Triannual valuation was that the long term pension rate
within the plan was increased to 17.1%. The previous long term contribution
rate was 16%. Rates have been increased to reflect extra prudence being
built into the Actuary’s long term funding assumptions and the future liabilities
of the scheme. WDH’s contribution rate for 2020/2021 will be 14.8%, this is
an increase from the current contribution rate of 14.3%.
The contribution rate will increase by 0.4 or 0.5% per annum up to the long
term rate over the next six years. The future contribution rates are listed
below.
% per
annum
2020/2021
14.8
2021/2022
15.2
2022/2023
15.7
2023/2024
16.2
2024/2025
16.7
2025/2026 (long term)
17.1
The rates payable post 2022 are subject to the Triannual review.
The employer’s contribution to the LGPS by WDH for the year ended
31 March 2020 was £5.6m (2019: £5.5m). The employer contribution rate for
next year is set at 14.8% which will be in the region of £5.8m for the year
ending 31 March 2021.
WDH remain a committed member of the WYPF and these increases are
affordable to WDH in the long term and are included in the approved Business
Plan.
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Employees (continued)
During the Triannual review, the Actuary also completed its formal Tier Three
review of all employers within the scheme. The review was carried out to
reflect the financial strength of each employer within the scheme and to
introduce specific funding classifications to all employers. Employers could be
classified into three funding target types; Orphan, Intermediate, Secure, with
high, medium or low risk profiles. Only fully taxpayer backed Tier 1 and Tier 2
employers can be classified as secure, e.g. local authorities.
WDH has been classified as an Admitted Body with an Intermediate, low risk
profile. In terms of risk / funding profile, this is the highest rating a housing
association without a Subsumption Agreement can achieve and reflects the
financial strength of WDH.
McCloud
In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that there was age discrimination
in the way certain transitional protections have been applied in respect of the
Judges and Firefighters pension schemes. The principles of this case are also
applicable to Local Government Pension Schemes. The liability was first
included in the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019, any change in the
allowance to 31 March 2020 has been taken to other comprehensive income.
The current Service Cost includes a prospective allowance for McCloud
liabilities of 1.86% of pensionable pay over the accounting period.
Guaranteed Minimum Pension
Guaranteed Minimum Pension is a portion of pension that was accrued by
individuals who were contracted out of the Stated Second Pension prior to
6 April 1999. The rate at which GMP was accrued, and the date it is payable,
is different for men and women, meaning there is in inequality for male and
female members who have GMP. The liability was first included in the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019, any change in the allowance to
31 March 2020 has been taken to other comprehensive income.
Transfer of employees to Together Housing Association
On 30 March 2020, 48 employees transferred to Together Housing
Association under TUPE arrangements, 45 of these were within the pension
scheme. This transfer has resulted in a decrease in the value of assets and
liabilities at 31 March 2020. This decrease has been allowed for within Net
increase in assets from disposals and Net increase in liabilities from disposals.
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Employees (continued)
Financial Assumptions

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Consumer Price Inflation

31 March
2020
% per
annum
2.30
3.15
1.90
1.90

31 March
2019
% per
annum
2.50
3.35
2.10
2.10

Mortality Assumptions
The mortality assumptions are based on actual mortality experience of members
within the Fund based on analysis carried out as part of the 2016 valuation and
allow for expected future mortality improvements. Life expectancies at age 65
resulting from these mortality assumptions are shown below:

Retiring today:
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

2020
No. of
years

2019
No. of
years

21.8
24.6

22.2
25.4

22.5
25.7

23.2
27.2

Major Categories of Plan Assets as a Percentage of Total Plan Assets
Value at
Value at
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
Equity
Property
Government bonds
Corporate bonds
Cash
Other

77.5%
4.5%
9.6%
5.1%
1.9%
1.4%

74.0%
4.7%
11.2%
4.0%
2.3%
3.8%

Total

100%

100%
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Employees (continued)
Amounts Recognised in Surplus or Deficit
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Current service cost
Past service cost

13,472
35

11,964
3,869

Amounts charged to operating costs

13,507

15,833

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Pension gain on transfer of employees

1,766

-

Amounts charged to Other Social Housing
Activities

1,766

-

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Net interest

1,502

1,041

Amounts charged to interest payable and
similar charges

1,502

1,041
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Employees (continued)
Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of
Scheme Liabilities
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Opening scheme liabilities
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by participants
Actuarial (gain) / loss on liabilities
Benefits paid
Past service cost
Net decrease in liabilities from disposals

347,180
13,472
8,622
2,602
(18,040)
(7,371)
35
(6,430)

312,967
11,964
8,080
2,573
14,888
(7,161)
3,869
-

Closing value of scheme liabilities

340,070

347,180

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Present Value of
Scheme Assets
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest income
Actuarial (loss) / gains on assets
Contributions by employer
Contributions by participants
Net benefits paid out
Net decrease in assets from disposals

284,321
7,120
(26,986)
5,570
2,602
(7,371)
(4,664)

270,198
7,039
6,168
5,504
2,573
(7,161)
-

Closing fair value of scheme assets

260,592

284,321

Net position of the Pension Scheme in the Statement of Financial
Position

Scheme liabilities
Scheme assets
Net liability of the pension scheme

2020
£’000
(340,070)
260,592

2019
£’000
(347,180)
284,321

(79,478)

(62,859)
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Employees (continued)
Actuarial Loss Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss on liabilities
Actuarial (loss) / gain on assets
Actuarial loss

Actual Return on Scheme Assets

2020
£’000
18,040
(26,986)

2019
£’000
(14,888)
6,168

(8,946)

(8,720)

Interest income on assets
(Loss) / Gain on assets

2020
£’000
7,120
(26,986)

2019
£’000
7,039
6,168

Actual return on scheme assets

(19,866)

13,207
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Employees (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis
Adjustment to Discount Rate

Present value of total obligation

+ 0.1%

- 0.1%

Per
annum
£’000

Base
figure
£’000

Per
annum
£’000

331,908

340,070

348,232

Adjustment to Rate of General Increase in Salaries
+ 0.1%

Present value of total obligation
Adjustment to Pension Increase Rate

Present value of total obligation
Adjustment to Mortality Age Rating

Present value of total obligation

- 0.1%

Per
annum
£’000

Base
figure
£’000

Per
annum
£’000

341,430

340,070

338,710

+ 0.1%

- 0.1%

Per
annum
£’000

Base
figure
£’000

Per
annum
£’000

346,871

340,070

333,269

+ 0.1%

- 0.1%

Per
annum
£’000

Base
figure
£’000

Per
annum
£’000

350,952

340,070

329,188
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Board Members and Executive Directors
Executive Directors Emoluments
Key management personnel:
Aggregate emoluments of Executive Directors (including
National Insurance but excluding pension)
Aggregate value of Association pension contributions
Total Emoluments
Number of Executive Directors accruing retirement
benefits under defined benefit schemes as at year end

2020

2019

£’000

£’000

716

582

75

71

791

653

4

3

167

177

23

25

Highest Paid Director
Aggregate emoluments (excluding National Insurance)
Pension contributions

The Chief Executive is a member of the LGPS. He is an ordinary member of
the pension scheme with no enhanced or special terms. The Association does
not make any further contribution to an individual pension arrangement for the
Chief Executive or any other Director.
There was no compensation payable to Directors or past Directors. There
was no consideration payable to third parties for making available the services
of any person to perform the role of Director.
During the year, ex-gracia payments totalling £70k were made (2019: £nil).
Non Executive Board Emoluments
2020

2019

Stephen Green
Kathryn Cooper (Resigned May 2020)
Jacqui Williams (Resigned 27 July 2020)
Graham Stokes
Sally Wright (Resigned May 2020)
Phillip Earnshaw
Andrew Stubbs (Resigned December 2019)
Howard Bedford (Resigned August 2019)
Christopher Michael Gaskell
Peter Loosemore (Resigned 21 February 2019)

£
10,000
7,500
6,750
6,750
6,250
4,000
4,000
3,000
2,250
-

£
10,000
7,500
7,500
6,000
7,500
5,000
1,300
2,000

Total Emoluments

50,500

46,800
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Tax on Deficit on Ordinary Activities
(a)

Analysis of Charge in Year

Group

Association

2020

2019

2020

2019

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

141

52

141

52

-

-

-

-

141

52

141

52

Origination and reversal of timing
differences

-

-

-

-

Total Deferred Tax

-

-

-

-

141

52

141

52

Current Tax
UK Corporation Tax on result for the period
Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total Current Tax (note 11b)
Deferred Tax

Tax on (deficit) / surplus

The tax assessed differs from the standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK,
19% (2019: 19%). The differences are explained below:
(b)

Total tax reconciliation
2020
£’000

(Deficit) / surplus on ordinary
activities before tax
Adjustments in respect of
charitable activities
Surplus on ordinary activities
subject to tax
Surplus on ordinary activities
subject to tax multiplied by the
standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19%
Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses

Group

Association

2019
£’000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

(97,797)

14,892

(98,176)

14,789

98,539

(14,618)

98,918

(14,515)

742

274

742

274

141

52

141

52

-

-

-

-

141

52

141

52

Total tax charge

Unused tax losses total £nil (2019: £nil).
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties

Group and Association –
Housing properties

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Work to existing properties
Transfer to rented
Transfer to shared
Transfer to current assets
Transfer to other assets
Schemes completed
Disposals
Valuation adjustment
At 31 March 2020
Depreciation and
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation charged in year
Transfer to rented
Transfer to shared
Transfer to current assets
Transfer to other assets
Released on disposal
Impairment
Valuation adjustment
At 31 March 2020

Social
Social
Housing
Housing
Properties
Properties
Held for
Under
Letting Construction
£’000
£’000

Shared
Ownership
Properties
Held for
Total
Letting Properties
£’000
£’000

681,140
10,707
842
(1,146)
(426)
(973)
25,883
(5,797)
26,981

11,498
34,268
(32,689)
-

15,920
(842)
1,146
(178)
6,806
(742)
4,304

708,558
34,268
10,707
(604)
(973)
(6,539)
31,285

737,211

13,077

26,414

776,702

22,129
8
(38)
(43)
(73)
(319)
290
(21,954)

-

172
(8)
38
(2)
(102)
(98)

-

-

-

-

22,301
(45)
(73)
(421)
290
(22,052)

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

737,211

13,077

26,414

776,702

At 31 March 2019

681,140

11,498

15,920

708,558
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties (continued)
Valuation
Completed housing properties are stated at EUV-SH with special
assumptions, including notional directly attributable material acquisition costs.
WDH’s housing properties have been valued by professional external valuers,
Savills (UK) Limited, a general practice firm providing surveying and valuation
services. The latest valuation was performed on 31 March 2020. The full
valuation of the properties was undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
incorporates the regulatory requirements of the RSH.
Properties at valuation under EUV-SH have a carrying value of £764m (2019:
£697m).
In valuing housing properties, discounted cash flow methodology was adopted
with the following key assumptions:
Group and Association
Discount rates
Social Transferred
Social Post Transfer
Intermediate
Affordable Transferred
Affordable Post Transfer
Shared Ownership

2020
%

2019
%

5.25%
5.00%
5.00%
5.25%
5.00%
4.50%

5.25%
5.00%
5.00%
5.25%
5.00%
4.75%

CPI Inflation
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3

1.50%
1.75%
1.75%

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%

Long Term Rental Growth

2.00%

CPI + 1%

The carrying value of housing properties that would have been included in the
Financial Statements had the assets been carried at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment is as follows:
Group and Association

Housing properties at historical cost
Depreciation and impairment

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

758,586
(182,878)

721,046
(164,120)

575,708

556,926
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Properties (continued)
Social Housing and Other Grants
Group and Association
Total Social Housing Grant at 31 March:
Recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Recognised in previous years
Deferred income

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

3,307
53,209
3,298

3,189
47,299
2,721

59,814

53,209

Housing properties book value net of depreciation:
Group and Association
Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

773,325
3,377

704,822
3,736

776,702

708,558

At the 31 March 2020 the Group and WDH had 261 (2019: 261) social housing
properties held for letting and four (2019: five) low cost shared ownership
properties on long leaseholds.
Expenditure on works to existing properties
Group and Association

2020
£ ’000

2019
£ ’000

Improvement works capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure
account

10,707

16,905

11,848

13,304

22,555

30,209

Impairment
The Group considers individual assets when assessing for impairment in
accordance with the requirements of FRS 102 and SORP 2018.
There was an impairment charge during the year ended 31 March 2020 of £287k
in relation to properties that are awaiting demolition (2019: £184k).
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Tangible Fixed Assets – Other
Group and Association
Freehold
Offices
£’000

Plant and
Equipment
£’000

Furniture
Fixtures and
Fittings
£’000

Computer
Equipment
£’000

12,447
29
12,476

871
871

5,075
219
642
5,936

2,161
27
2,188

111
111

1,127
809
1,936

21,792
1,057
669
23,518

1,242
249
1,491

626
35
661

3,102
279
71
3,452

1,534
208
1,742

84
21
105

-

6,588
792
71
7,451

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

10,985

210

2,484

446

6

1,936

16,067

At 31 March 2019

11,205

245

3,100

627

27

1,936

15,204

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Transfers
At 31 March 2020
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation charged in year
Transfers
At 31 March 2020

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

Under
construction
£’000

Total
£’000

Assets under construction are upgrades to the Lift Systems within WDH’s high rise buildings of (£1.8m) and uncompleted works to
office facilities of (£0.1m). There are no tangible fixed assets purchased under finance leases.
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Intangible Assets
Computer
Software
Under
Construction
£’000

Total
£’000

5,449
2,984
(8,139)
(27)

11,803
2,984
(350)
(27)

14,143

267

14,410

Amortisation
At 1 April 2019
Amortisation in year
At 31 March 2020

6,100
1,256
7,356

-

6,100
1,256
7,356

Net book value
At 31 March 2020
At 31 March 2019

6,787
254

267
5,449

7,054
5,703

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals
Transferred to completed
Transferred to other fixed
assets
At 31 March 2020

Computer
Software
£’000
6,354
(350)
8,139
-
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Investment Properties
£’000
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals
Decrease in fair value

11,850
82
(44)
(1,288)

At 31 March 2020

10,600

Investment properties comprise of shops and garages held for letting.
Investment properties were valued at 31 March 2020 at market value. The
Group’s investment properties have been valued by Savills (UK) Limited, a
general practice firm providing surveying and valuation services. The latest
valuation was performed on 31 March 2020.
The independent expert’s valuation obtained included a ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global.
Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be
attached to the valuation of investment properties than would normally be the
case. WDH have considered the material valuation uncertainty and are
comfortable that this uncertainty is temporary and investment property
valuations are recoverable in the long term, and while less certainty and a
higher degree of caution needs to be attached to the valuation, the valuation
can still be relied on. WDH therefore consider the valuation included in the
independent expert’s report to be an accurate reflection of the investment
property fair value.
In valuing investment properties, the following key assumptions were used:
Group and Association
Garages
Future rent increases
Void losses
Shops
Rental income 2020/21
Rental income 2021/22 and future
Void losses

2020
%
CPI
25%
(10)%
CPI
25%
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Homebuy Loans
Group and Association

At 1 April 2019
Loans repaid
At 31 March 2020

2020
£’000
147
(18)
129

Under the scheme individuals are provided with a loan of up to 15% of the
purchase price of the property. Under the equity release scheme, a loan is
provided to tenants allowing them to buy into the improvement programme.
Loans are provided up to the value of works required. The loan is repayable if
the property is sold, and becomes interest bearing after five years of
commencement of the loan.

17.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
As required by statute and the accounting standards, the Financial Statements
consolidate the result of WDHS and NSS, which are subsidiaries of WDH. WDH
has the right to appoint members to the Board of the subsidiaries and thereby
exercises control over them. WDH is the ultimate parent undertaking.
The following are subsidiary and joint venture undertakings of the Association:
Name
WDH Solutions Limited
Northern Shared Services Limited
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP

Holding
100%
51%
50%

The main activity of WDHS is the provision of repairs, maintenance and
installations, predominantly outside of the social housing sector.
NSS is a subsidiary created in March 2013, which is a cost sharing entity and
has £nil residual profits. The main activity of NSS is to provide repairs and
maintenance, void repairs, and gas maintenance services to social housing.
The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position include £nil profits. NSS stopped carrying out repairs and
maintenance services at the end of this financial year.
Bridge Homes (Yorkshire) LLP is a joint venture created in July 2014, as a
Limited Liability Partnership whose main activity is to build and sell homes.
WDH has a 50% interest in Bridge Homes, it is considered to be a joint venture
on the basis of joint control. The investment in Bridge Homes is shown below.
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Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture (continued)
Investment in the Joint Venture

At 1 April
Additional investment
Share of profit in joint venture

2020
£’000
4,042
379

Group
2019
£’000
3,241
750
51

At 31 March

4,421

4,042

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
3,500
2,750
750
3,500

3,500

The additional investment relates to cash invested in Bridge Homes (Yorkshire)
LLP during the year.
During the year WDH had the following intra-group transactions with WDHS and
NSS.
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

34

101

201

899

8

23

Management Services
NSS

197

193

Repairs and
maintenance Services
NSS

4,744

4,418

5,184

5,634

Management Services
WDHS
Directly attributable costs
of WDHS
Gift aid

18.

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale
Shared ownership properties
under construction

Allocation Basis
The charge is based on
directly attributable labour
costs.
Directly attributable costs.
Gift aid received from
WDHS.
The charge is based on
directly attributable labour
costs.
The charge is based on
directly attributable costs.

Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

4,729

4,568

4,729

4,568

-

57

-

57

4,729

4,625

4,729

4,625
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19.

Trade and Other Debtors

Due within one year
Rent and service charges
receivable
Less net present value of
tenants on arrangements
Less provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Sundry debtors
Less provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued
income
Amounts due from Bridge
Homes (Yorkshire) LLP
Amounts due from
WDH Solutions and NSS

2020
£’000

Group

8,814

2019
£’000

10,604

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
8,814

10,604

(50)

(68)

(50)

(68)

(5,256)

(5,669)

(5,256)

(5,669)

3,508

4,867

3,508

4,867

911
(464)

759
(431)

900
(462)

716
(431)

448

328

438

285

752
2,749

4,002
1,633

667
2,220

2,491
1,599

50

23

50

23

-

-

1,621

2,142

7,507

10,853

8,504

11,407

Trade and other debtors have decreased from the prior year due to the timing
of the housing benefit payment. This year the payment was received before
the year end, therefore reducing the year end balance for rents and service
charges receivable.
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20.

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year

Debt (note 25)*
Trade creditors
Rent and service charges
received in advance
Social Housing Grant
received in advance
Recycled capital grant fund
(note 22)
Disposal proceeds fund
(note 23)
Corporation tax
Other tax and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

21.

2020
£’000

Group
2019
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

528,670
2,359

2,200
3,348

528,670
2,359

2,200
3,348

4,927

1,083

4,927

1,083

3,298
-

2,721
-

3,298
-

2,721
-

1,889
141
956
2,238
5,941

2,304
52
1,079
2,000
4,557

1,889
141
956
2,230
5,925

2,304
52
988
2,000
4,515

550,419

19,346

550,395

19,211

Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year

Debt (note 25)*
Recycled capital grant fund
(note 22)
Disposal proceeds fund
(note 23)

2020
£’000

Group
2019
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

-

417,300

-

417,300

752

652

752

652

-

-

-

-

752

417,952

752

417,952

*All debt became repayable within one year due to the prepayment notice
served on 12 February 2020. The refinancing completed post year end on
16 April 2020 for RBS and Santander and on 21 April 2020 with The Housing
Finance Corporation.
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22.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
At 1 April
Grants recycled
Withdrawals
Interest
At 31 March

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

652
236
(136)
-

434
347
(130)
1

652
236
(136)
-

434
347
(130)
1

752

652

752

652

Withdrawals form the Recycled Capital Grant Fund have been used for the
purchase and development of new housing schemes for letting and for
approved works to existing properties.
There is £nil due within one year (2019: £nil).

23.

Disposal Proceeds Fund
Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

At 1 April
Withdrawals

2,304
(415)

2,362
(58)

2,304
(415)

2,362
(58)

At 31 March

1,889

2,304

1,889

2,304

There is no grant due for repayment within one year (2019: £nil).
Withdrawals from the Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF) were used for approved
schemes and released on completion of the related properties. The remaining
balance has been fully allocated to development schemes and will be released
on completion of the related properties. Due to delays in schemes starting on
site WDH has received authorisation to roll DPF balances into 2020/2021.
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24.

Advance Receipts and Payments
Immediately prior to entering into the Stock Transfer Agreement between
Wakefield Council and WDH at March 2005, Wakefield Council and WDH
entered into a contract for WDH to perform the improvement works required to
bring the properties into an agreed state. The contract was for a fixed sum equal
to the expected cost of the works, which is £672m exclusive of VAT. At transfer,
WDH contracted with Wakefield Council to acquire the benefit of the agreed
refurbishment works (£672m) plus the housing properties at a price equal to the
agreed value of the properties in their unenhanced condition (£15m). These
contracts have enabled WDH to recover VAT on repair and improvement costs
that would otherwise have been expensed.
At the time of transfer WDH paid over a net cash amount of £15m to
Wakefield Council, representing the acquisition of the properties in their
unenhanced condition (£15m) and the value of Wakefield Council’s obligation to
carry out the improvements works (£672m), less the amount due to be incurred
by WDH under the Development Agreement in relation to the anticipated cost of
the repairs and improvements (£672m). To date, £711m of improvement work
has gone through the VAT shelter, this is in excess of the original obligation.
However, the shelter continues to operate for first time works on transferred
properties.

25.

Debt Analysis
Group and Association
Due after more than one year
Bank loans

Group and Association
Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

-

417,300

-

417,300

2020
£’000
528,670
-

2019
£’000
2,200
3,300
32,023
381,977

528,670

419,500

All outstanding loans were repaid on 16 April 2020 as part of a refinancing
transaction. The loans have been classified as within one year as a notice to
prepay was served on 12 February 2020. Included in the above are £111,370k of
expected changes cash flows in relation to the amortised cost of the financial
liability, in line with the requirements of FRS 102 Section 11. Further details can
be found in note 33 of the financial statements.
The refinancing of the loan portfolio completed during April 2020. WDH have
arranged new facilities totalling £520m. WDH had drawn down £400m of the
new facility as at September 2020.
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26. Share Capital
2020
£

Shares of £1 each, allotted and fully paid
As at 1 April
Net issues less retirements

8

As at 31 March

8

The shares are non-transferable, non-redeemable and carry no rights to
receive either income or capital payments. They are therefore classified as
non-equity shares.

27.

Group Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(Loss) / surplus for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of housing property
Depreciation of other fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of housing properties
Grant receivable
Net gain on disposal of assets
Loss on valuation of investment property
(Increase) / decrease in property held for sale
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other debtors
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other creditors
Pension costs less contributions payable
Tax payable
Share of operating surplus in joint venture
Adjustments for investing or financing
activities:
Interest payable
Exceptional finance charge
Interest received
Tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

2020
£’000
(97,938)

2019
£’000
14,840

22,301
792
1,256
290
(3,551)
(2,128)
1,288
(104)
2,889
4,352
6,171
141
(379)
33,318

23,618
881
250
184
(3,189)
(2,732)
600
1,309
(4,967)
(853)
10,329
52
(51)
25,431

19,041
111,370
(515)
129,896

18,582
(411)
18,171

(52)

(87)

65,224

58,355
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27.

Group Cash Flow from Operating Activities (continued)
Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Expected change to loan cash
flows
Bank loans due within one
Bank loans due greater than
one year
Total

28.

Cash
flows
£’000

Other non
cash
movements
£’000

At 31
March
2020
£’000

87,572

10,718

-

98,290

-

-

(111,370)

(111,370)

(2,200)

2,200

(417,300)

(417,300)

(417,300)

-

417,300

-

(331,928)

12,918

(111,370)

(430,380)

At 1
April
2019
£’000

Financial Commitments

Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:
Group and Association
Capital expenditure tangible assets
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not
contracted
Total tangible assets
Capital expenditure intangible assets
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the
accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not
contracted
Total intangible assets
Total

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

61,460

36,976

21,919
83,379

35,224
72,200

187

-

107

4,686

294

4,686

83,673

76,886

Commitments will be financed through WDH’s cash reserves, operating cash
flows and, if required, through borrowings from the loan facility. WDH’s had
£173m of cash and undrawn loan facilities at the 31 March 2020.
The increase in committed spend is in line with the Business Plan targets to
increase delivery of new build properties towards 500 units per year. As such
WDH have committed to more schemes in year ended 31 March 2020. The
timing of these cash flows have been delayed in quarter one of 2020/2021
due to COVID-19. However, the commitments are not time constrained.
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29.

Operating Leases
The future minimum lease payments of leases are as set out below. Leases
relate to office space in eight locations, photocopiers and motor vehicles.

30.

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

596
2,038
2,142
4,776

623
2,391
2,577
5,591

(i)

Land and buildings
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

(ii)

Office equipment and computers
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

18
59
77

8
8

(iii)

Motor vehicles
Within one year
Between one to five years
Later than five years
Total

1,026
2,411
3,437

1,240
336
1,576

Contingent Assets and Liabilities
The Group and Association have no contingent assets at 31 March 2020
(2019: £nil).
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31.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
The policy on financial instruments is explained in the Report of the Board as
are references to financial risks.
Categories of financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Homebuy loans receivable
Rents and service charges receivable
Sundry debtors
Other debtors
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Debt
Trade creditors
Other creditors
Disposal Proceeds Fund
Recycled Capital Grant Fund
Accruals

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

128
3,508
448
1,830
98,290
104,204

147
4,867
328
4,083
87,572
96,997

528,670
2,359
2,230
1,889
752
5,926

419,500
3,348
2,000
2,304
652
4,023

541,826

431,827

Financial Assets
Other than debtors, financial assets held are overnight cash deposits of £98.3m
(2019: £45.7m) at 31 March 2020 and are held at call, and £nil (2019: £41.2m)
cash on term deposit. They are sterling denominated and attract interest at rates
that vary with bank rates.
Financial Liabilities excluding Trade Creditors – Interest Rate Risk
Profile
The Group’s financial liabilities are sterling denominated. The interest rate profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 March was:
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Floating rate
Fixed rate
Exceptional finance charge (note 8)

94,300
323,000
111,370

94,500
325,000
-

Total (note 25)

528,670

419,500

The floating rate of financial liabilities comprise of bank loans that bear interest at
rates based on the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate.
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31. Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)
Borrowing Facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities. The drawn and
undrawn facilities available at 31 March, in respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met, were as follows:

Overdraft expiring in one year or less
Expected change in loan cash flows due within
one year
Loan facility expiring in less than one year
Loan facility expiring in more than one year but
not more than two years
Loan facility expiring in more than two years

32.

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

111,370

-

492,300
-

2,200
3,300

-

489,000

603,670

494,500

Related Parties
At the year end there were three locally elected Council members:
Jacqueline Williams, Graham Stokes and Jacqueline Speight on the Board.
The Group undertakes transactions with Wakefield Council at arms length in
the normal course of business.
Disclosures in relation to key management personnel and payments to Board
members are included in note 10.
In March 2013, WDH and Together Housing Association incorporated a cost
sharing group, Northern Shared Services Limited (NSS). WDH holds 51%
and members of Together Housing Association hold 40%, and Arches
Housing own 1% of the share capital. The Company has been established to
provide repairs and maintenance, void repairs, and gas maintenance services.
During the year WDH charged NSS £4,846k (2019: £4,496k) for repairs and
maintenance services, as at 31 March 2020 NSS owed WDH £1,460k
(2019: £1,477k). The company stopped carrying out repairs and maintenance
services on 30 March 2020.
In July 2014, WDH and Wakefield Council created Bridge Homes (Yorkshire)
LLP, WDH has a 50% interest. The joint venture has been established to
build homes for outright sale. During the year Bridge Homes purchased from
WDH £305k of services (2019: £257k). During the year WDH purchased
properties from Bridge Homes totalling £1,339k (2019: £1,913k). As at
31 March 2020 Bridge Homes owed WDH £50k (2018: £23k) and WDH owed
Bridge homes £nil (2019: £3k).
All related party transactions are at arms length.
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33.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Non adjusting
Refinancing
WDH served notice to the syndicate to prepay the loans on the
12 February 2020 and indemnities were agreed on 25 and 26 February 2020.
The refinancing completed post year end on 16 April 2020 for RBS and
Santander and on 21 April 2020 with The Housing Finance Corporation.
WDH have moved from a syndicated loan to bi-lateral loans with RBS £250m,
Santander £170m and The Housing Finance Corporation £100m. The new
loan facilities total £520m. This replaces the syndicated facility of £500m.
Under the new bilateral loan agreements WDH have less restrictions than
existed under the syndicate. Some of the restrictions that no longer exist
have meant that WDH can access additional funds when required, all assets
no longer need to be secured against the loans, which means WDH have now
a pot of unsecured assets and annual business plan approval has been
removed.
The accounting impact of the refinance has not yet been finalised.
Management consider that the refinance to be substantial modification under
FRS 102 section 11 resulting in a derecognition of the previous loans. The
new loans will be accounted for at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. The
impact of this transaction will be presented in the financial statements for the
year ending 31 March 2021 and the proposal is to that the loans will be
recognised at their fair value on the date of the refinancing.
COVID-19
COVID-19 has had an unprecedented impact on the economy. Whilst the
long term effects of COVID-19 remain unclear, in the short term it is expected
that the economy will enter recession, as economic output has fallen since
lockdown has been in place This has been mitigated by the Government’s
actions to support employment, which in turn has enabled WDH customers to
continue to pay their rents. WDH have not experienced any negative financial
impact of COVID-19 other than a four month delay in the reinvestment and
new build programmes. This has resulted in a forecast reduction of 100 units
in the new build programme and circa £6m lower spend in the capital reinvestment programme.
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33.

Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)
Closure of Northern Shared Services Limited
NSS and all employees associated with the subsidiary transferred to Together
Housing Association (THA) on the 30 March 2020. NSS was made up of
three partner Associations WDH, THA and Arches Housing. THA took the
decision during the financial year to return all repairs work to their inhouse
repairs service from the 31 March 2020.
This decision meant that NSS was no longer financially viable due to the
majority of the turnover of the Association being the delivery of THA’s repairs
service. Employees associated with this contract have TUPE transferred to
THA. The closure of this subsidiary does not have a material impact on the
cost base or future performance of WDH.
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